
We create value…

Annual Report 2000 

Veidekke ASA
P.O. Box 505 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo

Telephone +47 21 05 50 00 Fax +47 21 05 50 01
E-mail: firmapost@veidekke.no

Internet: www.veidekke.no
The Annual Report is also accessible at: www.veidekke.no/investorinfo

D
E

S
IG

N
: C

O
B

R
A

 A
S

/V
E

ID
E

K
K

E
 A

S
A

 • P
H

O
T

O
: O

LE
 W

A
LT

E
R

 JA
C

O
B

S
E

N
/S

T
E

E
N

 A
N

D
E

R
S

E
N

• P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
: 4+4 A

S

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
0
0
 V

E
ID

E
K

K
E

 A
S

A



The best customers

Building in partnership

Thinking innovatively

Creating value

Board of Directors’ Report

Accounts for the Group

Accounts for Veidekke ASA

Auditors’ Report

Key figures

Risk factors 

Shareholder Policy

Organisation Chart

Addresses

4
8

10
12
14
22
38
42
43
44
45
49
50

Turnover Turnover

Norway 68%

Sweden 5%

Denmark
23%

We are in no doubt at Veidekke what our best guarantee of progress is. It is the closest 

possible interaction with our customers. This is reflected in our business philosophy: 

To create value by designing, building and managing structures in partnership with 

customers who inspire growth and development. The year under review proved over and

over again that this is the key to our success. This philosophy has also proved to be the

best guide to continuous improvement. We wish to report more than the bare facts in this

Annual Report. We wish to demonstrate that our business philosophy is very much alive.

The requirement of precision underpins everything we promise our customers. We deliver the agreed
quality at the agreed time and at the agreed price. On this foundation rest three promises which shall be
visible to customers and other partners: To build in partnership, to think innovatively and to create value.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2001

Publication dates for interim reports
1st quarter: 4  May 
2nd quarter: 22  August
3rd quarter: 1 November

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 3 May 
The shares will be quoted ex dividend on 4 May
Distribution of dividends to shareholders on 23 May

Investor Relations, telephone + 47 21 05 77 22
Internet: www.veidekke.no
The Annual Report is accessible at
www.veidekke.no/investorinfo
Information about Veidekke may also be obtained at
www.huginonline.com/Norway/VEI

Five-year Review 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Profit
Turnover * 8,005 6,487 5,645 4,961 4,129
Operating profit * 263.9 328.3 287.8 248.6 113.6
Profit before taxation * 185.0 295.3 282.3 270.4 123.0
Gross profit margin (%) 2.3 4.6 5.0 5.5 3.0
Order Book, Construction * 5,833 3,210 2,682 2,710 2,261

Financial figures
Cash flow from operating activities * 299.1 327.1 283.4 507.6 107.5
Gross investments * 1,635 526 590 321 212
Equity ratio (%) 20.5 29.4 29.4 32.0 30.9

Profitability
Return on working capital (%) 10.2 24.5 26.8 29.4 15.7
Return on equity (%) 10.8 20.4 23.1 26.5 13.7

Shares and shareholders
Earnings per share (NOK) 4.79 8.41 8.10 7.91 3.39
Dividend per share (NOK) 2.00 2.75 2.50 2.38 1.38
Market price 31 December (NOK) 57.00 74.50 45.00 64.50 50.25
Market value at 31 December * 1,516 1,698 1,026 1,470 1,145

Employees
Average number of employees in the
Nordic countries 5,021 4,175 4,047 3,176 3,111
Absence rate (%) 6.1 5.2 4.9 4.6 4.3
Absence rate hourly-paid employees (%) 7.9 6.7 6.1 6.0 5.4
Lost-time injuries per million working 
hours 11.8 9.4 11.9 12.5 16.3

* In NOK million
Key figures and definitions see page 43
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INDUSTRY DIVISION 

Divisional Management
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Kolo Veidekke a.s (Asphalting)
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 50
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Region East
P.O. Box 124, N-2051 Jessheim
Office address: Industriveien 14
Telephone: +47 63 94 78 50
Telefax +47 63 94 78 51

District South
N-1827 Hobøl
Telephone: +47 69 92 16 22
Telefax: +47 69 92 19 19

District Central Norway
P.O. Box 113, N-1471 Skårer
Office address: Solheimsveien 91 F
Telephone: +47 67 91 11 10
Telefax: +47 67 91 11 11

District North
N-2834 Hunndalen
Telephone: +47 61 17 33 65
Telefax: +47 61 17 72 70

Kongsvinger Asfalt
P.O. Box 1234, N-2201 Kongsvinger
Office address: Mårveien 14
Telephone: +47 62 82 88 50
Telefax: +47 62 82 88 60

Region North West
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

District Finnmark
Raipasveien, N-9517 Alta
Telephone: +47 78 44 97 00
Telefax: +47 78 44 97 01

District Nordland/Troms
P.O. Box 243, N-8201 Fauske
Telephone: +47 75 64 10 50
Telefax: +47 75 64 10 51

District Trøndelag
P.O. Box 6100 Sluppen, N-7435 Trondheim
Office address: Sluppenvegen 11
Telephone: +47 73 82 35 00
Telefax: +47 73 82 35 95

District Møre
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

District Rogaland/Sogn og Fjordane
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

Gravel and Crushed Stone
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 50
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Veidekke Gjenvinning AS (Recycling)
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 21

Arog AS
P.O. Box 393, N-1372 Asker
Office address: Yggeseth 
Telephone: +47 66 78 74 41
Telefax: +47 66 90 07 85

Dokken AS
P.O. Box 237, N-3470 Slemmestad
Office address: Almdalsveien 6
Telephone: +47 66 79 45 00
Telefax: +47 66 79 50 26

Spesialrenovasjon AS
P.O. Box 273 Økern, N-0511 Oslo
Office address: Haraldrudveien 20
Telephone: +47 23 26 78 50
Telefax: +47 22 63 08 69

Wilhelmsen & Sønner A/S
P.O. Box 273 Økern, N-0511 Oslo
Office address: Haraldrudveien 20
Telephone: +47 23 26 78 50
Telefax: +47 22 63 08 69

BAUTAS (Plant Hire)
P.O. Box 190, N-1313 Vøyenenga
Office address: Ringeriksveien 201 C
Telephone: +47 21 05 55 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 55 01

Weather Protection

Lainapeite Oy
Koskelontie 17 b, FIN-02920 Espoo, Finland 
Telephone: +358 10 809 900
Telefax: +358 9 8491 5520

Jonsereds Miljøsystem AB
William Gibsons väg 1, S-43389 Jonsered,
Sweden
Telephone: +46 31 94 99 00
Telefax: +46 31 94 99 10

IPS Dansk Presenning A/S
Islevdalvej 150, DK-2610 Rødovre, Denmark
Telephone: +45 44 94 42 00
Telefax: +45 44 84 77 15



… in partnership with our customers

Creating value

Veidekke is committed to giving
its customers value for money -
value that can be measured
when a building or structure is
handed over and at any time
during its life. We are equally
strongly committed to creating
value for our shareholders.
Creating value also ensures the
sustainability of our operations
over time in relation to human
and environmental resources.

Veidekke approaches each task with a will and a
commitment to find better, more innovative and
more creative solutions. Innovation is not limited to
technology. It also means developing new forms of
cooperation and professional and human creativity.

At Veidekke we believe that a building or structure is best when it is
created in partnership with the customer. ‘Building in partnership’ is an
expression of our ambition to carry cooperation a step further –
towards a genuinely binding partnership in which we make use of the
best of each other’s resources, expertise and visions.

Thinking innovatively

Building in partnership
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With last year’s acquisition of H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S  in

Denmark and new business operations in Stockholm, we have

now established ourselves as a significant player in the

Scandinavian market. This gives us a wider, more varied base

and puts us in a better position to serve customers with cross-

border operations in Scandinavia. 

The radical restructuring of the construction industries in

Norway and the other Scandinavian countries continued in

2000. In Norway, it was especially Swedish contractors who

were in evidence through major acquisitions. Veidekke is now

the only leading company in Norway’s third largest industry

with its head office and ownership base in Norway.

In 2000, we followed through on our strategy of developing

our company into a leading player in the Scandinavian market

– a strategy that is in line with the trends we see not just in our

market but in the country in general, and in line with the struc-

tural changes we see in our customers’ companies and in our

own industry. 

Our customers have become global, or at any rate

Scandinavian, and that makes Scandinavia one market. As a

result of the single market in the EU and EEA, capital, people

and resources can move freely over national borders.

Customers are concentrating more on their core expertise,

which means that price alone will not decide whether or not
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“The best customers are the ones who 
inspire growth and development”
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Veidekke has a solid position in Norway and a strong presence

in Sweden. With last year’s acquisition of H. Hoffmann & Sønner

A/S in Denmark, Veidekke has established itself as a significant

Scandinavian player. This gives us a wider, more varied market

base and it also puts us in a better position to serve customers

with cross-border operations in Scandinavia.

we are awarded a contract. In the future, both

solutions and the creation of value will be an

essential condition of a team effort between the

customer and ourselves as contractor and pro-

fessional partner. There have also been changes

in demographic conditions. People live longer;

they have more leisure time and they have

more disposable income. This means that acti-

vity in sectors like housing, leisure time, health

and care will increase paving the way for new

forms of cooperation between private players

and public customers. Likewise, we see that

new growth areas are developing in building

and construction. The use of information and

communication technology is changing the pat-

terns of interaction and creating new products.

Focus on the environment demands environ-

mentally acceptable performance, attention to

choice of products and the re-use of materials.

We are also going through a time of change in

our interaction with the authorities. There is a

stronger and stronger demand for more effi-

cient use of public resources, which opens up

the possibility of increased competition and

new forms of interaction and contracts. 

The approaches to these changes vary in the

Scandinavian countries. So here, too, we see

numerous opportunities to make active use of

our total expertise across national borders.

Learning from other people’s experience can

contribute to new solutions.

To keep pace with these developments, how-

ever, we have to increase the breadth and

depth of our expertise, widen our geographic

scope and improve our flexibility as an organi-

sation. Moreover, we need a shareholder and

capital base that will back up our company’s

strategy on a long-term basis. Both we as a

company and our shareholders need to be able

to see the collective potential of our operations

in a Scandinavian perspective.

Expanding into the Scandinavian market

Against this background, we began to focus on

the Scandinavian market in 1999. Today, we are

the fourth largest contracting company in

Scandinavia. An important part of this expan-

sion was the incorporation of H. Hoffmann &

Sønner A/S, the oldest and one of the best-

known contractors in Denmark. We also set up

two new companies in the Stockholm region in

the fields of property development and con-
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struction. Along with our existing operations in

Gothenburg and Bautas’ plant hire operations in

Gothenburg and Stockholm, these companies

represent a significant foothold in Sweden.

Strategically speaking, 2000 was thus a very

important year for us. We laid the foundation for

our further development as a Scandinavian con-

tractor.

Financially speaking, 2000 far from fulfilled our

expectations. We have tackled the problems and

implemented measures throughout the com-

pany. We are going to get back on track. 

A dynamic business does not stand still. It is on

the move and knows where it is going. We have

two specific ambitions at Veidekke: We aim to be

one of the three leading players in Scandinavia

in the field of construction, project development

and property development, and we will continue

to develop our operations in the field of plant

hire, recycling and asphalt/raw materials in the

same market areas. We shall achieve a 20%

return on shareholder’s equity. We have laid the

foundation. We have the resources and the

expertise.

One set of basic values and one communication

platform

Veidekke has always based its development on

the creation of value in the broadest possible

sense. This also applies to the basic values on

which our entire business is founded and which

can be summed up in the words: professional,

honest, enthusiastic and ground-breaking.  

These basic values are reflected in our business

philosophy: “We create value by designing, buil-

ding and managing structures in partnership

with customers who inspire growth and develop-

ment”. This means giving priority to ensuring

that our customers can relate to Veidekke as one

company. We must focus even more on deve-

loping a single corporate brand and we must

strengthen our foundation in a common philo-

sophy.

More than anything else, it is our interaction

with discriminating customers that drives us for-

ward. Together we will realise our vision: We will

build a better future for people in all stages of

life.



We at Veidekke wish to take co-operation a step 

further – towards a genuinely binding partnership 

in which we make use of the best of each other’s

resources, expertise and visions. We call this

‘Building in Partnership’. We are interested in co-

operation and creative processes across departments

and divisions. The same applies to our customers,

side contractors, subcontractors and suppliers. We

think we can achieve the best result if we achieve it

together – when everyone involved helps to find 

flexible solutions. That is why it is important to create

good networks based on the will to carry on a con-

structive dialogue. We believe in building in partner-

ship and that is why we attach such importance to

co-ownership among our employees.

7
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Client: Gjensidige NOR Spareforsikring/ Sektor Eiendomsutvikling AS

Project: Sjøsiden in Horten

Description: A combinded shopping and residential complex

Eirik Holm, Project Manager at Sektor Eiendomsutvikling and 
Pål Engebretsen, Project Manager at Veidekke

Thanks to openness and good communication internally and externally, 
we have gained a good deal of experience and carried out a major project 
in a very flexible manner.

Sjøsiden is the name of a combined shop-
ping and residential complex in Horten. It
consists of 38 shops and 46 tenant-owned
flats. Veidekke’s client is Gjensidige NOR
Spareforsikring. Sektor Eiendomsutvikling
AS is responsible for development and
management of the centre.

‘Building in Partnership’ was the keynote
of the whole project. Veidekke, as develo-
per, enjoyed close yet flexible co-operation
with the client throughout the process,
from quotation via planning to the comple-
tion of the building work. Sektor
Eiendomsutvikling was present at all the
planning and special meetings along the
way. This made it easier to make changes
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Building in partnership

Sjøsiden in Horten

and decisions as the work progressed. Early on in the
process, changes were made which increased the avail-
able premises in the shopping centre by 250 square
metres and the number of flats from 36 to 46.

“We also enjoyed close co-operation with the tenants,”
says Veidekke’s Project Manager Pål Engebretsen. “Our
liaison manager co-operates with Sektor in order to be
able to offer the tenants flexible solutions,” he adds.
“The tenants can, for example, ask Veidekke for estima-
tes for equipping the premises.”

The interior of Sjøsiden is another example of ‘Building
in Partnership’. In addition to Veidekke’s Vestfold
branch, which is responsible for the project, its 
branches in Østfold/Akershus and Oslo were also invol-
ved. As was the Heavy Construction Division, which

carried out the very important and difficult groundwork 
on the site. Each of these participants has a 25% share in
the project. It has therefore also been important for
Engebretsen to focus on the employees’ attachment to 
the project rather than to their own workplace.

“When one of Veidekke’s branches gets a large project like
this, it becomes a Veidekke project,” says Engebretsen.
“Thanks to openness and good communication internally
and externally, we have gained a good deal of experience
and carried out a major project in an extremely flexible
manner. This is ‘Building in Partnership’ in practice,”
Engebretsen explains.

The Sjøsiden shopping centre was handed over to the
client on 6 April 2001 and it was opened on 19 April after 
a building period of 17 months. 



Breaking new ground is inspiring and it motivates 

people to contribute more. It is Veidekke’s aim to 

think innovatively as regards technology and forms of

co-operation, as well as technical and human creativity. 

In this way, we will seek better solutions for our

employees, customers and suppliers. We will perform

our tasks efficiently and creatively and thus contribute

to innovation as an independent company and as a

player in one of Norway’s largest industries. We have

achieved our position as the fourth largest contractor 

in Scandinavia by actively breaking new ground. 

This is a talent we will foster and develop.

10
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Project: Warm Asphalt Mix (WAM-foam)

Description: New production method for warm asphalt

Carl Robertus, Technical Manager, Bitumen at Shell and 
Olle R. Larsen, Head of Development at Kolo Veidekke

Thinking innovatively

Shell and Kolo Veidekke
have been doing research
into a new production 
method for warm asphalt,
Warm Asphalt Mix (WAM-
foam), since 1995. They have arrived at a revolu-
tionary method by which emissions of CO2 in
Norway can be reduced by an amount equiva-
lent to emissions from 12,000 cars. Shell and
Veidekke’s asphalt company, Kolo Veidekke, are
the first to present a new production method for
asphalt whereby asphalt with the same quality
as traditional asphalt can be achieved at a signi-
ficantly lower production temperature. This 
method is the result of ‘new thinking’ and team-
work. The inventors have applied for a patent
for WAM-foam on a world-wide basis.

The difference between conventional asphalt
production and the new method is the use of
foam technology. This allows a radical reduction
of the temperature during production and 
laying. 

Conventional
asphalt is pro-
duced at 150-
180oC and laid
at between

130 and 160oC. During the WAM-foam process
the temperature is reduced to 100-120oC and
during asphalting it is reduced to 80-100oC.

The new method means tremendous savings
and environmental gains. It has been calculated,
for example, that heating costs can be reduced
by 30% (up to NOK 10 per tonne) and CO2 emis-
sions can be reduced by up to 30%. Five million
tonnes of asphalt are produced in Norway each
year and 40 million litres of heating oil is used
in the process. By the new method, consump-
tion of heating oil is reduced by about 12 million
litres each year. CO2 emissions amount to 2.7 kg
per kg heating oil, which means a reduction in
CO2 emissions of almost 33,000 tonnes each
year with the present production volume. This is
the equivalent of the CO2 emissions from about
12,000 cars each year in Norway *).

WAM-foam (Warm Asphalt Mix)

*) According to Statistics Norway, the emission of CO2 from one car is 2.7 tonnes per year.



Our aim in creating value is to ensure long-term 

profitability – for Veidekke, for our partners and for 

our customers. The customer must be able to measure

this value when the building or structure is handed 

over and at any time during its life. For Veidekke, 

creating value also ensures the long-term sustainability

of our operations for our employees, customers, 

suppliers and the environment.
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The municipality of Farum, a local district
20 km north of Copenhagen, has been a
pioneer in finding new ways for the local
authorities to carry out their tasks. At the
end of the 1980s, Farum needed a new
town hall, but did not wish to tie up capi-
tal. They decided to sell the town hall to H.
Hoffmann & Sønner A/S and the Hafnia
insurance company, which renovated and
extended it. The local council now rents
the premises it needs from the owners.
The capital thus released is used to reduce
rates and taxes. 

Following that success, the municipality of
Farum started looking for other projects
they could deal with in the same way.
Their choice fell on the municipal water
treatment plant. This plant needed radical
upgrading and conversion if it was to
meet new environmental standards. For
political reasons, the treatment plant was
not sold. Instead the local council signed a
10-year management agreement with
Hoffmann in 1990. Hoffmann had experi-
ence from a similar project in Dubai, but
the standards applying to the treatment of
the waste water from the plant in Farum
were extensive and complex. Hoffmann
therefore decided to join forces with an-
other Danish company, Krüger A/S.
Together they formed a third company:
Hoffmann Krüger Farum A/S (HFK). HFK
took over the six employees at the treat-
ment plant. Each year the plant received
and treated two million cubic metres of
sewage. 

More than DKK 200 million was invested
over the next eight years in renovation
and development work which HFK had a
contractual right to carry out at market
price. As a result, the local authorities
saved 15% of what it would have cost
them to run the treatment plant them-
selves. Moreover, they are now in posses-
sion of one of the most modern treatment
plants in Europe, a plant which discharges
Denmark’s cleanest waste water. Of course
it was also a profitable venture for HFK.

In 1998, the local council decided to privat-
ise its entire technical administration. The
treatment plant, sewage system, pump
stations, rainwater reservoirs etc. were put
up for sale in accordance with the EU
regulations. The plan was for the new
owner to run and develop the plant for 20
years. HFK won the contract in competi-
tion with three other companies. The treat-
ment plant is owned today by FIH, Finance
for Danish Industry, while HFK is respon-
sible for management and maintenance.
Substantial investments will also be made
over the next twenty years. These agree-
ments have created value for all of the
parties. The local authorities have saved
considerable sums of money; the 
employees have better conditions, and
HFK is running at a profit. And best of all,
the local authorities will have a fully
upgraded sewage system when they buy
it back again after twenty years.

Client: The municipality of Farum

Project: Water treatment plant

Description: Upgrading and conversion to meet new environmental standards

Peter Brixtofte, Mayor of Farum and Gert Olsen, Branch Manager at 
H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S

Creating value

Farum 
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A weak heavy construction market, a substantial
loss on a single project, low earnings from plant
hire and establishment expenses in Stockholm – all
of these factors contributed to weaken Veidekke’s
financial results in 2000. 2000 was also a year of
significant strategic investment.

Veidekke achieved a pre-tax profit of NOK 185 milli-
on in 2000. This is a downswing from NOK 295.3
million in 1999. This profit was based on a turnover
of NOK 8,005 million, which was 23% higher than
the year before. The weak profit can be ascribed
primarily to a substantial loss on a turnkey project
in the Regional Construction Division, low earnings
from Bautas’ plant hire operations in the Industry
Division and the expense of establishing and buil-
ding up operations in Sweden. The profit for the
year was also affected by a weak market for both
heavy construction and asphalt, which in turn led 
to low margins and weaker profits. The Veidekke
Group achieved a profit margin of 2.3% (4.6% in
1999), return on equity of 10.8% (20.4%) and 
earnings per share of NOK 4.79 (8.41).

The Board of Directors is not satisfied with these
figures. Veidekke has, however, taken steps and
drawn up action plans to improve profits in the
areas where it did not attain its financial targets.
2000 was thus a very important year for Veidekke.
The Group has come a long way towards establi-
shing a solid Scandinavian platform in the building
and construction market. Its most important invest-
ments in 2000 were the purchase of the listed gene-
ral contractors H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S in
Denmark, the purchase of Selmer Bostäder in
Stockholm from Skanska, and the establishment of
building and construction activities in the
Stockholm region. At the same time, Veidekke
expanded its market positions in Norway both geo-
graphically and product-wise. It strengthened its
contracting operations with the purchase of Bøhler
Entreprenør and Bøhler Vedlikehold in Oslo, 70% of
the shares in UNI Bygg in Harstad, 85% of the sha-
res in Br. Reme A/S in Kristiansand, and 70% of the
shares in Valdresbygg A.S in Valdres. These acqui-
sitions have moved Veidekke into the position of
leading building contractor in Norway. Two signifi-
cant investments were made in the heavy construc-
tion sector with the purchase of 70% of the shares
in Trafikk & Anlegg A.S in Skien and 79% of the
shares in Bj. Kynningsrud’s foundations division. 
In the Industry Division, plant hire was expanded
through the acquisition of listed company Stavdal
ASA and its merger with Bautas on 1 January 2000.
Veidekke sold its ready-mix concrete operations and
outsourced IT management, in keeping with the
company’s wish to concentrate its activities on core
areas.

Veidekke is also working actively to achieve greater
customer integration in its projects and a more
holistic perspective in its commitments. Veidekke is
thus expanding the range of its activities – from
being a traditional contractor to being a partner
which can meet its customer’s overall needs in
heavy construction, building and property develop-
ment. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that
this is absolutely necessary in order to bring out
and develop the substantial assets that lie inherent
in Veidekke’s experience, technical skills and project
portfolio.

In March, Veidekke’s shares were subdivided into
two new shares and the limitations on voting rights
were removed from the company’s articles of asso-
ciation, making it one share one vote. With a view
to strengthening the company’s financial basis for
future growth in Norway and Scandinavia, a rights
issue was effected in May, whereby one new share
was issued for every six old shares. This increased
shareholders’ equity by NOK 191.2 million. This
issue was a prerequisite for the substantial increase
in investment during the year.

The state of Veidekke’s order books at the end of
the year is regarded as satisfactory in terms of both
quantity and quality. Orders-on-hand for building
and heavy construction, excluding Industry, totalled
NOK 5,833 million. NOK 1,357 million of this figure
represents orders for the Danish company, 
H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S. The total increase of no
less than 82% is due mainly to acquisitions during
the year. In addition to this, Veidekke’s Property
Division has substantial property on hand for resi-
dential and non-residential development projects
which represent considerable potential earnings in
the years to come.

Financial development
Veidekke achieved a total turnover for 2000 of NOK
8,005 million (NOK 6,487 million for 1999). This is
an increase of 23%. Almost all of this increase is a
result of the acquisitions and new operations that
were effected in the course of the year. The Industry
Division showed a growth in turnover of 45%, main-
ly as a result of the purchase of Stavdal. The
Regional Construction Division increased its turn-
over by 19%. The Heavy Construction Division 
suffered a drop in turnover of 9%, but without the
acquisitions this would have been 20%. Hoffmann
in Denmark contributed NOK 540 million to turn-
over in the fourth quarter.

A year of strategic importance to Veidekke – 
from a Norwegian to a Scandinavian company

The Board of Directors’ Report
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The Group’s pre-tax profit was NOK 185.0 million (NOK 295.3 million), giving a
profit margin of 2.3% (4.6%). The decline in profit can, as mentioned above, pri-
marily be ascribed to losses on a turnkey project in the Regional Construction
Division and weak figures for Bautas in the Industry Division. The Property
Division posted a profit of NOK 30.3 million (NOK 29.7 million).

The Group’s operating profit was NOK 263.9 million (NOK 328.3 million). This
figure takes into account amortisation of goodwill in the amount of NOK 69.1
million (NOK 31.7 million). Net financial items were NOK –78.9 million (NOK – 33
million). The increase in goodwill and financial expenses is a result of the exten-
sive company acquisitions in 2000. 

Profit after taxes and minority shares was NOK 120.6 million (NOK 195.4 million).
Earnings per share were NOK 4.79 (NOK 8.41), cash flow per share was 
NOK 20.18 (NOK 19.15) and return on equity was 10.8% (20.4%).

BUSINESS AREAS

Regional Construction
The Regional Construction Division is responsible for Veidekke’s building and
regional construction operations in Norway.

In 2000, the Division achieved a turnover of NOK 3,521 million (NOK 2,951 milli-
on), which is a growth of 19%. Its profit of NOK 77.9 million (NOK 119.6 million)
was lower than anticipated. This gave a profit margin of 2.2%, compared with
4.1% in 1999. The downturn in profit is due first and foremost to a loss on the
Rainbow Hotel Opera project in Oslo, resulting largely from an underestimation
of building time and costs. The Division had moreover a lower volume in the
third quarter 2000 than in the same period last year. A number of major building
projects were completed at the end of 1999 and it took longer than expected to
build up a new contract portfolio to replace these projects. There was also a
delay in the commencement of several projects for Veidekke’s account.

Regional Construction strengthened its market position in 2000 by acquiring a
number of companies, including Bøhler Entreprenør and Bøhler Vedlikehold in
Oslo, UNI Bygg in Harstad, Br. Reme A/S in Kristiansand and Valdresbygg A.S 
in Valdres. Veidekke is now the leading building contractor in Norway. The
Kristiansand investment has put Veidekke into a leading position in the south of
Norway and the Harstad purchase has given the company a foothold in the
north. Following the takeover of the Bøhler companies, Veidekke has also moved
into the lead in the maintenance market in Norway and has expanded its exper-
tise and resource base for large and medium-sized projects in the Oslo area.

Regional Construction is working on a number of measures to boost its competi-
tive strength and increase its attractiveness. Its production process will be stre-
amlined and industrialised and cost-efficiency will be improved. Steps have been
taken to achieve better and more efficient use of knowledge in the Division with,
for example, the help of IT. The Division has widened its partnerships with major,
regular customers and is also looking at considerable potential benefits from co-
operation in the Scandinavian market.

At the end of 2000, the Division’s orders-on-hand reached a historic high at 
NOK 3,219 million, compared with NOK 2,272 million the year before. This is 
an increase of 42%. The percentage of contracts developed in partnership with 
customers is still high and is approximately 65% of total orders-on-hand.

Christian Bruusgaard
Chairman of the Board

Partner in law firm
Thommesen Krefting
Greve Lund AS

Helge B. Andresen
Supreme Court Attorney

Håkon Langballe
Director, Norsk Hydro ASA
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Heavy Construction/International Division
In 2000 the main business of this Division was
heavy construction in Norway. Veidekke’s contrac-
ting operations in Sweden and its other internatio-
nal operations are also part of this Division. In 2000,
the Division had a turnover of NOK 1,780 million
(NOK 1,952 million) and a profit of NOK 21.1 million
(NOK 86.3 million), giving a profit margin of 1.2%
as against 4.4% in 1999. As anticipated, turnover
dropped again in 2000, due mainly to the very weak
market for heavy construction in Norway. The
Division therefore adjusted its capacity to a lower
level of turnover and took on projects relating more
to building than to heavy construction. 

The Division made two important acquisitions in
2000: 70% of the shares in Trafikk & Anlegg A.S in
Skien and 79% of the shares in Bj. Kynningsrud AS’
foundations division. The level of activity in the
heavy construction market in Norway remained low
throughout 2000 and the Division decided to step
up its activities abroad. Veidekke is the leader of a
Nordic consortium which also consists of ABB
Distribusjon AS, Alstom Power Ltd., GE Energy and
Skanska AB. This consortium has been awarded a
major hydropower contract in Bujagali in Uganda.
This project is expected to start up in the summer
2001. Veidekke’s share of the total contract value of
just over NOK 4 billion amounts to about NOK 1 bil-
lion. The project will not be registered in the order
books until the client’s financing has finally been
clarified.

In Sweden, Veidekke set up a new construction
company, Veidekke Stockholm AB, in the second
half of the year in conjunction with its takeover of
property company Selmer Bostäder. The new com-
pany is a significant addition to Veidekke’s existing
operations in Sweden through the construction
company Vecon AB and Stavdal in the field of plant
hire and weather protection.

There is a great deal of potential for this division
through interaction with the other divisions in the
company and alliances with other contractors with
a view to bigger, complex contracts abroad. The
above-mentioned hydropower project in Uganda is
a good example of this. Another challenge lies in
“public-private partnership” in the road sector. A
great deal of work has been done in preparation for
future projects of this kind, not least to ensure that
Veidekke has the cutting-edge skills required for
participation in the projects that will be put out for
tender at the end of 2001.

Operations in Sweden through Vecon AB in
Gothenburg showed a turnover of NOK 165 million.
Other international operations, first and foremost
Noremco in East Africa, had a turnover of NOK 234
million (NOK 220 million). In January 2001,
Noremco won the contract for the building of a new
EU embassy in Dar es Salaam, a contract worth
about NOK 170 million. At the end of the year the
Heavy Construction/International Division had
orders-on-hand for NOK 1,257 million, as against
NOK 938 million a year earlier.

H. Hoffmann & Sønner AS
H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S is Denmark’s fifth lar-
gest general contractor. Veidekke took over the
company in autumn 2000 and it was incorporated
into the Group accounts with effect from the fourth
quarter. Hoffmann was listed on Copenhagen Stock
Exchange until 29 November 2000. Hoffmann is
now organised as a division of the Veidekke Group,
with the main responsibility for the Group’s opera-
tions in Denmark.

Hoffmann has 1,330 employees and had a turnover
of NOK 2,153 million, an increase of 18% compared
with 1999 (NOK 1,832 million). Profit before taxation
rose by 11% to NOK 38.8 million (NOK 34.9 million).
The company contributed NOK 540 million in turn-
over and a profit of NOK 12 million after financial
expenses and goodwill to the consolidated
accounts for the fourth quarter.

Hoffmann’s most prestigious project in 2000 was
Denmark’s first Hilton hotel, valued at about 
NOK 550 million. The hotel was built in partnership
with Monberg & Thorsen A/S and was handed over
to the client in January 2001. Hoffmann is also
investing extensively in property development, pur-
chasing centrally situated sites in Copenhagen and
Århus for office premises and housing. In Århus, an
18-storey office building is under construction for
the sum of about NOK 200 million and in May work
will commence on a 5,000 square metre building
which will be leased to the Danish Employment
Services.

In 2000, Hoffmann was involved in various projects
for Danida, including road projects in Uganda and
in Benin. These two contracts have a value of
approximately NOK 400 million.

At the end of the year Hoffmann had orders-on-
hand for NOK 1,357 million compared with 
NOK 1,434 million a year earlier.



17

Peder Chr. Løvenskiold
Managing Director
Anthon B. Nilsen AS

Kristian Omsland
Managing Director
OMS Eiendom AS

Hilde Aasheim
Financial Director
Elkem Aluminium ANS

Industry Division
The Industry Division comprises the following business areas: Asphalt/Raw
materials, which is looked after by Kolo Veidekke a.s, Plant Hire represented by
Bautas, Weather Protection in the hands of Nordic Shelter Solutions AB and
Recycling represented by Veidekke Gjenvinning AS. Ready-mix concrete, which
used to be part of this division, was sold to a Danish company in 2000.

Plant hire operations were expanded in 2000 through the purchase of Stavdal,
which was merged with Bautas with effect from 1 January 2000. In the course of
the year, Veidekke consolidated its position as Norway’s foremost company in
the field of demolition, receiving and recycling of construction waste. 

The Division increased its turnover by 45% to NOK 2,268 million in 2000 (NOK
1,564 million). This increase derives largely from the merger of Stavdal with
Bautas. Its pre-tax profit was NOK 50.2 million (NOK 61.2 million). This gave a
profit margin of 2.2% (3.9%). The acquisition of Stavdal in 2000 pushed the
Division’s goodwill and financial expenses up from NOK 55.3 million in 1999 to
NOK 68.3 million. 

The operations of Bautas/Stavdal represent a substantial part (30%) of the
Division’s turnover. Considerable resources have been used to achieve a satisfac-
tory integration of the two companies. This - along with the problems that arose
with the introduction of a new computerised accounting and plant hire system in
Bautas during the transition to the year 2000 - resulted in far lower earnings than
anticipated. Stavdal has nonetheless succeeded in turning a loss of NOK 36 mil-
lion in 1999 into a profit of NOK 29 million in 2000. Steps have now been initia-
ted that are expected to return Stavdal and the original Bautas to more normal
and stronger earnings in 2001. Stavdal has relatively extensive operations in the
plant hire market in Sweden, in addition to its share of the market in Norway.
Bautas/Stavdal is the largest company of its kind in Norway and the second 
largest in Sweden. In Sweden, Veidekke also does considerable business in the
field of weather protection. 

The asphalt market fell by 15% in 2000. This was due mainly to the steep rise in
oil prices, but also to the fact that the Public Roads Administration had not adju-
sted operations for its own account to meet the decline in the market.
Nevertheless, Veidekke can show an improvement in profit for its asphalt opera-
tions thanks, among other things, to lower winter costs and a further increase in
productivity.

In 2000, Veidekke Recycling consolidated its position in all parts of the value
chain – from demolition to utilisation of building waste as a sales commodity.
Veidekke Recycling has purchased a stake in a new, environmentally acceptable
type of insulation based on the recycling of textiles. This product will go into
production in the course of 2001 and it will be used in a number of projects for
Veidekke’s own account.
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Construction
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Property Division
This Division’s operations include the development
of residential and non-residential projects for
Veidekke’s own account, as well as the develop-
ment, financing and building of user-oriented buil-
dings for the public sector. Turnover in 2000 was
NOK 186.1 million (NOK 328 million), of which 
NOK 55.8 million (NOK 43.9 million) represents ren-
tal revenues and management fees. The remainder
derives from sales of commercial property and
dwellings. The profit of NOK 30.3 million, as against
NOK 29.7 million in 1999, relates to all intents and
purposes to sales of dwellings for Veidekke’s own
account and commercial properties.

In the course of the year under review, the Property
Division expanded its property development opera-
tions. A number of sites were purchased for resi-
dential and non-residential development in order to
ensure a steady supply of available property. At the
end of 2000, Veidekke owned sites and develop-
ment contracts totalling 320,000 square metres for
commercial development and more than 520,000
square metres for housing. One of its most impor-
tant development projects is Sjølyststranda at
Skøyen, where OBOS, a co-operative building as-
sociation, and Veidekke plan to build around 500
residential units and develop 30,000 square metres
of commercial property on the Norwegian Trade
Fairs’ former exhibition area. Building is expected
to start as soon as the Trade Fairs vacate the 
property in August 2002.

At the end of 2000, Veidekke had 566 dwellings
under construction for its own account. Only 180 of
these have not yet been sold. The building of a fur-
ther 500 dwellings will be commenced in 2001. This
means a considerably higher level of activity than
in 2000. This is expected to give a higher turnover
and better earnings.

In the course of the next three years Veidekke will
start on an average of approximately 300 dwellings
per year in Stockholm and about 200 dwellings in
Denmark. Provided that the market develops as
anticipated, Veidekke will initiate the building of
about 1,000 dwellings a year in Scandinavia from
2004 onwards.

Developments in the housing market are regarded
as positive, but Veidekke still wishes to limit its
exposure to risk both in individual projects and in
projects as a whole. Less activity is expected in
2001 in non-residential property development for
Veidekke’s account in line with a lower demand for
office and commercial buildings.

Veidekke’s increased focus on interaction with the
municipal and regional authorities through
Veidekke Publico offers many new and interesting
possibilities. One of these is a nursing home at pre-
sent under construction for the Drammen municipal
authorities. In 2000 Veidekke Publico handed over a
fire station to the Larvik municipal council. Veidekke
Publico is at present negotiating with several local
authorities on the development, financing, building,
operation and maintenance of everything from
schools and nursing homes to town halls and
sports grounds.

FINANCIAL SITUATION
In 2000, investments totalled NOK 1,635 million
(NOK 526 million), 999 million of which was con-
nected to acquisitions of companies. Capital tied up
in housing projects amounts to NOK 503 million
and in non-residential projects to NOK 450 million.
The risk involved in these projects is deemed to be
small in view of the central position of these pro-
jects where the demand for housing is high, and in
view of the extent of advance sales in the projects
that have been commenced. 

Sales of fixed assets amounted to NOK 140 million
(NOK 70 million). This figure includes NOK 108 mil-
lion from the sale of ready-mix concrete operations.

Net cash flow from operations was NOK 299.1 mil-
lion (NOK 327.1 million). The Group’s net interest
bearing position at the end of the year was 
NOK -1,319.2 million (NOK -206.8 million), while
total assets stood at NOK 6,427 million (NOK 3,566
million). The increase in total assets can be related
to the rise in turnover and investment in expansion.
Total shareholders’ equity increased from 
NOK 1,050 million to NOK 1,320.6 million, corre-
sponding to a equity ratio of 20.5% (29.4%). The
Group’s committed borrowing facilities were NOK
750 million (NOK 325 million). With these credit
facilities, the Group’s liquidity is regarded as satis-
factory.

In accordance with Section 3-3 of the Accounting
Act, the Board confirms that the basis for continued
operations is present. The annual accounts for 2000
have been drawn up accordingly.

Organisation and skills development
At the end of 2000, Veidekke had an average of
5,021 employees (4,175) in the Nordic countries. Of
these, 3,353 (2,750) are craftsmen and production
workers and 1,668 (1,425) are administrative and
technical personnel. The marked increase in these
figures is due to the new companies that became
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Average number of Employees 

in the Nordic Countries

part of Veidekke in the course of the year. 
Veidekke has its own course centre, Kompas, which offers training in communi-
cation and management skills and upgrading of technical skills. In 2000, Kompas
started making use of new technology, with the signing of a contract with 
IT Fornebu Knowation on net-based learning. Veidekke has a trainee scheme for
graduate engineers, engineers and MBAs, and a mentor system has also been
established.

The number of apprentices in the company remains high. In 2000, 141 persons
had apprenticeship contracts, compared with 128 the year before. Recruitment of
skilled workers to the building and construction industry is promoted through
the “On-Site Learning” project. This project was started on Veidekke’s initiative
and is being carried out in partnership with the Employment Services. It has pro-
ved to be very successful and has been expanded from one class in 1997-98 to
three classes in 2000-01. Two new classes will be added in 2001.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
The favourable downward trend in injuries that Veidekke has been experiencing
in recent years took a negative turn in 2000, in spite of efforts to intensify the
focus on and increase understanding of safety in the workplace. In the course of
2001 Veidekke had 71 lost-time injuries, compared with 56 in 1999. This gave an
injury rate (lost-time injuries per million man-hours) of 11.8 for the year (9.4). 

Absence due to illness continued to show an unfavourable trend throughout the
year. Absence for all employees was 6.1% (5.2%), while the rate for craftsmen
and production workers was 7.9% (6.7%). There was an increase in both short-
term and long-term absence in 2000, to 5.1% and 2.8% respectively. Comparable
figures in 1999 were 4.4% and 2.3%. Direct costs due to absence during the 
period were NOK 19.3 million.

An important part of the efforts to reduce the absence and injury figures is the
reporting of near-accidents or dangerous situations, and in 2000 a total of 1,520
incidents were reported. In 2001, improvements will be made in the existing IT
tools for the registration of undesirable incidents. Veidekke has also set into
motion continuous improvement projects, aiming to reduce absence due to sick-
ness and the number of injuries in the company. More attention will also be
given to improving follow-up of accidents by the line management by, for 
example, introducing new guidelines.

Veidekke had no significant material damage during the year.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT
Veidekke views environmental considerations as a challenge throughout the life
of the product – from planning and preparation, via production, management,
operation and maintenance, to demolition, separation and recycling. Veidekke
has an environmental vision which indicates that the company must contribute
to sustainable development and that environmental efforts must be integrated
into day-to-day operations. This includes managing and minimising the pollution
and waste generated by the company itself and implementing measures to
recover resources from waste.

Protection of the environment is an integral part of Veidekke’s quality system.
Annual operational plans include environmental factors and Veidekke works
continuously to increase employees’ knowledge of the environment through a
variety of courses and through participation in research and development pro-
jects. In December 2000, Veidekke Recycling was certified in accordance with
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ISO-14001 and ISO-9001. 
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE STOCK MARKET
At the end of 2000, Veidekke had 3,452 shareholders
(3,353). Its largest shareholders were Folketrygd-
fondet (12.6%) and Storebrand (12.6%). In 2000,
10.5 million Veidekke shares were traded on the
Oslo Stock Exchange. At the end of the year, 1,506
employees held shares in the company and their
total ownership share was 15.4%. The price of a
Veidekke share varied from NOK 53 to NOK 74
during the year.

In light of the company’s profit for the year, finan-
cial standing and future prospects, the Board of
Directors will recommend a dividend of NOK 2 for
2000 (NOK 2.75) to the Annual General Meeting on
3 May, in keeping with the company’s dividend poli-
cy which indicates a pay-out ratio of between 30
and 40%.

DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
The profit for the year for the parent company,
Veidekke ASA, was NOK 44.0 million (NOK 254.2
million). The Board of Directors will propose to the
Annual General Meeting that the parent company’s
profit be distributed as follows: 

NOK mill.
Allocated to dividend 53.2
Transferred to other shareholders’ equity -9.2
Profit for the year 44.0

The parent company’s distributable reserves
amount to NOK 772.8 million.

Market situation
The Norwegian economy appears to have settled
into a period of moderate but relatively stable
growth. There is some uncertainty, however, as
regards developments in the international econo-
my. No significant rise is expected in unemploy-
ment. The inflation rate is falling, and there are pro-
spects of a slightly lower nominal interest rate
towards the end of the year.

Household economy is strong and the demand for
housing is high, particularly in city areas. There are
prospects of a continued rise in prices in the market
for second-hand dwellings, albeit at more moderate
rate than in recent years. The commencement of
new dwellings increased last year, and further
growth is expected this year. This is underpinned
by the record-high orders-on-hand in this sector. 

The commencement of new non-residential buil-
dings has been high for several years and more
construction was commenced upon last year than
predicted. A somewhat slower rate of growth in pri-
vate consumption and generally moderate pro-
spects of growth for the Norwegian economy indi-
cate that fewer new buildings will be commenced
on this year. There are signs of a levelling off in the
inflow of new orders and in the orders in progress.

The decline in the heavy construction market was
greater last year than expected. This downtrend can
be ascribed to a combination of factors. The most
important were a reduction in road-building grants,
a fall in industry investments, and the continuing
decline in hydropower development and in the
armed forces. The situation for private contractors
was further aggravated by the fact that the Public
Roads Administration gave priority to its own
departments rather than putting contracts out for
tender on a genuine competitive basis. The outlook
for this year indicates a further decline during the
first part of the year, with the possibility of some
improvement in the second half of the year.

The ECON Centre for Economic Analysis predicts an
overall growth in Norway of approximately 2%. In
Denmark, there will be a slight decline in the buil-
ding and construction market as a whole, following
the completion of the big infrastructure projects in
the Great Belt channel and the Øresund Strait and
the extra activity from the repair of hurricane dama-
ge. The prospects for the Swedish building and
construction market are good and growth this year
is estimated to be about 5%. The housing sector is
the main contributor to this growth.
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PROSPECTS
Although the prospects for the building and construction market in Norway are 
rather mixed, the overall picture is still fairly positive. This provides a good basis for
our contracting operations in Norway. Veidekke’s situation will also be helped by its
new flexibility as a Scandinavian company with the possibility of exploiting market
opportunities in a larger geographical area.

In Sweden, most of the growth is expected to take place in the three big city areas,
which is very encouraging for Veidekke and its new operations in Stockholm and
Gothenburg. Even if there is a fall in the market in Denmark, the level will remain
high. There are good prospects of growth, particularly in the Copenhagen/Malmö
region and on Zealand where H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S has a very strong position.

Through its ambitious, well-directed investment programme in recent years and
more particularly in 2000, Veidekke has consolidated its position in Norway, built up
a position as one of the leading players in Scandinavia and expanded its internatio-
nal operations, especially in East Africa. Veidekke started off this year with a solid
Scandinavian platform and historically high orders-on-hand.

The figures for 2000 may not have been satisfactory, but there are good prospects of
a significant improvement in profits in 2001 in light of the market situation,
Veidekke’s order books and the internal measures implemented after the fall in pro-
fits last year. Where this is indicated by the market situation, further adjustments will
be made in capacity, in the same way as last year. Business areas that are not consi-
dered to be strategically important for the further expansion of the company will be
sold or developed in co-operation with external partners. Veidekke will also continue
to give priority to the development of new products and turnkey solutions for its 
customers.

The company’s long-term goals for earnings and return on capital remain 
unchanged.

Oslo, 23 February 2001

Christian Bruusgaard
Chairman of the Board

Helge B. Andresen Jan Kopstad

Håkon Langballe Peder Chr. Løvenskiold Kristian Omsland

Ove Ågedal Hilde Aasheim Terje R. Venold
President and CEO

Steinar Krogstad
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GROUP  Note 2000 1999 1998

(Figures in NOK million)

Turnover 1, 2, 28, 29 8,005.0 6,486.8 5,645.0

Subcontractors -3,005.2 -2,108.1 -1,983.3
Cost of materials -1,864.2 -1,813.4 -1,415.2
Wages 3, 19, 27 -1,949.9 -1,555.6 -1,374.5
Other operating expenses -533.9 -433.1 -385.8
Depreciation goodwill 6, 7 -69.1 -31.7 -20.0
Other depreciation 7 -318.8 -216.6 -178.4
Total operating costs -7,741.1 -6,158.5 -5,357.2

Operating profit 263.9 328.3 287.8

Financial income/expenses 5 -78.9 -33.0 -5.5

Profit before taxation 185.0 295.3 282.3

Taxation 18 -57.4 -92.0 -80.9

Profit for the year 127.6 203.3 201.4

Minority interests’ share 7.0 7.9 13.2

Earnings per share (NOK) 4.79 8.41 8.10

Profit and Loss Account
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GROUP 

At 31 December Note 2000 1999 1998

(Figures in NOK million)

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Goodwill 6, 7 646.4 254.3 184.3
Buildings/land 7 383.7 229.7 140.7
Machinery, etc. 7 1,411.0 807.1 731.8
Long-term receivables, etc. 10, 19 213.3 180.2 178.1
Total fixed assets 2,654.4 1,471.3 1,234.9

Current assets

Non-residential projects 11 450.4 338.0 316.0
Residential projects 12 503.2 266.4 281.4
Stocks 13 192.3 135.1 128.9
Debtors 14 1,721.6 1,019.5 836.2
Other short-term receivables 73.1 56.8 46.9
Liquid assets 15 832.0 278.4 369.1
Total current assets 3,772.6 2,094.2 1,978.5

Total assets 6,427.0 3,565.5 3,213.4

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 17 66.5 57.0 57.0
Other shareholders’ equity 1,167.4 920.4 787.7
Minority interests 86.7 72.6 99.3
Total shareholders’ equity 16 1,320.6 1,050.0 944.0

Long-term liabilities

Pension obligations 19 65.4 37.8 27.9
Deferred taxes 18 183.8 108.8 98.7
Debts to credit-issuing institutions, etc. 20 1,739.0 344.2 45.9
Other long-term liabilities 82.5 26.8 25.2
Total long-term liabilities 2,070.7 517.6 197.7

Current liabilities

Debts to credit-issuing institutions, etc. 21 439.0 297.0 489.6
Creditors 22 1,773.9 1,174.0 1,003.5
Unpaid government charges 23 428.8 256.7 266.4
Payable taxes and dividends 24 125.7 151.2 137.2
Other short-term debts 25 268.3 119.0 175.0
Total short-term liabilities 3,035.7 1,997.9 2,071.7

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 26, 29 6,427.0 3,565.5 3,213.4

Balance Sheet
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Cash Flow Statement

GROUP Note 30 2000 1999 1998

(Figures in NOK million)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 185.0 295.3 282.3
Tax paid -80.9 -81.7 -51.5
Depreciation 387.9 248.3 198.4
Gain on sale of fixed assets -43.4 -26.5 -14.1
Pensions, difference cost/paid -3.0 1.0 -2.6
Other differences profit/payment -2.1 3.0 -3.8
Generated from operating activities 443.5 439.4 408.7

Change in non-residential and residential projects -234.6 -7.0 -186.7
Change in debtors -26.7 -165.2 -130.8
Change in other current assets 19.5 -11.9 -7.3
Change in creditors 111.0 149.4 176.3
Change in other operating debts -13.6 -77.6 23.2
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 299.1 327.1 283.4

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment -635.8 -459.8 -518.0
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 140.3 69.9 54.7
Purchase of companies -468.9 -27.7 -45.0
Other investments -17.4 6.8 -54.2
Net cash flow from investment activities (B) -981.8 -410.8 -562.5

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New long-term borrowing 1,057.3 296.1 12.0
Repayments long-term debts -13.8 -14.7 -30.7
New short-term borrowing 118.4 60.9 423.8
Repayments short-term debts -61.8 -253.5 -102.0
Share issue 191.2 - -
Addition minority interest 7.9 1.6 2.1
Dividend paid -62.9 -97.4 -57.4
Net cash flow from financing activities (C ) 1,236.3 -7.0 247.8

NET CHANGE IN LIQUID ASSETS (A+B+C) 553.6 -90.7 -31.3

Liquid assets at 1 January 278.4 369.1 400.4
Liquid assets at 31 December 832.0 278.4 369.1
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CONSOLIDATION

Consolidated accounts
The consolidated accounts include the parent
company, subsidiaries and joint venture opera-
tions and give the Group’s profit/loss and financial
position as collective statements. 

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are companies in which Veidekke has
a controlling interest. The subsidiaries’ profit and
loss accounts and balance sheets are included in
their entirety in the Consolidated Accounts. The
minority interests’ share of the profit or loss for
the year and shareholders’ equity are shown as
separate items in the accounts.

Shares purchased in subsidiaries are dealt with
according to the acquisition method of accoun-
ting, by which the cost price of the shares is set
off against the book value of the shareholders’
equity in the subsidiary at the time of purchase.
Added or reduced value resulting from the pur-
chase is assigned to identifiable assets or liabiliti-
es. Added value that cannot be assigned to identi-
fiable assets and liabilities is entered in the balan-
ce sheet as goodwill.

Depreciation of added value and goodwill has
been entered in the Profit and Loss Account.

Joint venture operations
Some of Veidekke’s operations are run as joint
ventures with other companies. This kind of gene-
ral partnership applies to building and construc-
tion, asphalt operations and property, and inclu-
des working partnerships, joint and several liabili-
ty companies and public limited companies. In
working partnerships, construction contracts are
completed with other contractors. 

A joint venture operation is one in which two or
more parties manage the operation together and

• the operation is within the normal operating
areas of the partner

• the operation is jointly managed by the 
partners.

Joint venture operations account for part of
Veidekke’s overall activities, and Veidekke partici-
pates actively in these ventures. Financial invest-
ments, etc. do not constitute joint venture opera-
tions. Joint venture control means that no single
partner has a controlling interest, and that impor-
tant decisions are made together.

Veidekke uses the gross method (proportional
consolidation) for joint venture operations. When
using the gross method, the relevant proportion of
the joint venture account is included, and each
line of the Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet is incorporated. Activities in working part-
nerships and joint and several liability companies
are included in the parent company’s accounts,
while activities in public limited companies are
consolidated in the Group accounts. The acquisi-
tion method of accounting is used for the pur-
chase of a share in a joint venture operation.

Conversion of foreign companies
Balance sheet items relating to foreign companies
are converted at the exchange rate applying on
the date of the Balance Sheet, while Profit and
Loss Account items are converted at average
exchange rates for the year. Conversion differen-
ces for foreign subsidiaries are entered against the
Group’s shareholders’ equity, while conversion
differences for foreign joint ventures, etc. are ente-
red in the Profit and Loss Account.

Internal transactions
All internal transactions between consolidated
units have been eliminated. This applies to inter-
nal trading, interest, dividends and internal gains.
It also applies to internal receivables and liabili-
ties, in addition to share and capital investment.

RECORDING INCOME

Projects
Veidekke operates mainly as contractors on pro-
jects which last from a few months to two or three
years. Invoicing is done monthly (payment net 30
days) and usually as the contract activity progres-
ses. However, other payment plans are sometimes
used.

For projects, income is entered in step with the
completion of the work, based on the estimated
final profit for the project. This means that the
accumulated share of the estimated final profit is
charged to income based on the percentage of
completion. The percentage of completion is
equal to accrued costs as a percentage of total
estimated costs. In the case of projects that are
expected to show a loss, the estimated loss is
entered in its entirety as a cost. Provisions are
made for guarantee work and other uncertainties.
The guarantee period is normally three years.
Additional claims are entered as income once they
have been settled or the outcome is certain.

Accounting Policies
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Accounting Policies

Non-residential projects
Non-residential projects involve the development
and construction of non-residential buildings for
sale for Veidekke’s own account. Veidekke acquires
land and properties for the development and erec-
tion of non-residential buildings. Veidekke also
arranges leases with long-term tenants. The com-
pleted buildings are sold when an acceptable price
can be obtained. This may mean that Veidekke
keeps the buildings for a while, leasing them 
temporarily until they are sold. Costs incurred on
land, buildings under construction and completed
buildings are entered in the Balance Sheet under
“Non-residential projects”. Non-residential buil-
dings for Veidekke’s own account are entered as
income when they are sold, i.e. when the building
is handed over.

Residential projects
Residential projects involve the building of houses
for sale for Veidekke’s own account. A housing
project consists of many units and sales take place
before, during and after construction of the hou-
ses. These projects are entered as income in step
with sales and the construction of the houses,
based on the estimated final profit for the project.
No income is entered until at least 30% of the
houses in the project has been sold and built.
Provision is made for uncertainty, work under gua-
rantee, etc. In the case of projects that are expec-
ted to show a loss, the whole loss is charged to
profit. Costs incurred on units not entered as in-
come and on land for development are entered 
in the balance sheet under “Residential projects”.

Sales of fixed assets
Gains on sales of machinery, buildings and other
fixed assets are entered as turnover.

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Pensions
Veidekke has both contributory and non-contribu-
tory pension schemes for its employees.
Employees’ pension rights under the contributory
schemes are charged to expenses as they are ear-
ned and net pension commitments/pension funds
are entered in the Balance Sheet. An actuarial cal-
culation is made annually of pension expenses
and pension commitments, taking into account
anticipated wage growth based on linear accumu-
lation. “Pension funds” includes premium funds
and Veidekke’s share of the insurance company’s
funds (premium reserves). “Pension expenses”
includes the present value of the year’s pension
earnings, plus interest on commitments, less
return on pension funds.

Veidekke’s contributions to the non-contributory
schemes are paid directly out of operations and
charged to expenses as they are paid. No commit-
ments are entered in the Balance Sheet for these
schemes. 

Taxes
This year’s tax expenses consist of payable tax
and the change in deferred tax. Payable tax is
fixed on the basis of the year’s taxable profit.
Deferred tax is a provision for future payable tax,
calculated on timing differences between accounts
and tax. The reason why timing differences arise
is that some of the items in the Profit and Loss
Account are treated differently for accounting pur-
poses and for tax purposes. Deferred tax is calcu-
lated in nominal amounts, i.e. with no discount. 

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the financial lifetime of
the fixed assets.

Research and development costs
Costs relating to research and development of
technology are charged to expenses.

Receivables and debts
Receivables and debts that relate to production
are classified as current assets and short-term lia-
bilities. Debts to credit-issuing institutions etc.
which are taken up to finance fixed assets (invest-
ments) are classified as long-term liabilities, while
loans taken up to finance working capital (current
assets) are classified as short-term liabilities.
Other receivables and debts which are not due for
more than a year, are classified as fixed assets
and long-term liabilities. Receivables are entered
in the Balance Sheet at their nominal value less
provision for bad debts. Receivables and debts in
foreign currency are converted to the exchange
rate on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Stocks
Stocks are assessed at full cost price or net reali-
sable value, whichever is lower.
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Notes to the Accounts
Group

1. SEGMENT ANALYSIS                                                                                                     (Figures in the tables in NOK million)

PROFIT AND LOSS Regional Construction     Heavy Constr/International                     Hoffmann
ACCOUNT 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

Turnover 3,520.9 2,950.6 2,299.0 1,779.8 1,952.3 2,177.6 540.0
Operating costs -3,432.7 -2,833.0 -2,184.5 -1,693.8 -1,802.4 -2,029.0 -523.7
Depreciation -41.2 -23.1 -29.9 -60.4 -56.3 -75.2 -10.8
Operating profit 47.0 94.5 84.6 25.6 93.6 73.4 5.5
Net financial items 30.9 25.1 15.6 -4.5 -7.3 5.2 6.5
Profit before taxation 77.9 119.6 100.2 21.1 86.3 78.6 12.0

BALANCE SHEET at 31 December
Fixed assets 485.2 286.6 274.0 303.4 206.4 373.0 262.2
Current assets 568.0 499.2 319.9 424.1 482.1 475.0 535.6 
Liquid assets 322.1 556.2 350.1 15.6 127.0 258.3
Total assets 1,375.3 1,342.0 944.0 727.5 704.1 975.0 1,056.1
Shareholders’ equity 294.1 352.7 267.0 155.6 185.1 277.0 225.8
Long-term liabilities 613.5 108.3 300.4 46.7 129.2
Short-term liabilities 467.7 881.0 677.0 271.5 472.3 698.0 701.1
Total shareholders’ equity 1,375.3 1,342.0 944.0 727.5 704.1 975.0 1,056.1
and liabilities
Gross investments 249.2 183.2 108.2 167.4 115.9 153.0 261.3

PROFIT AND LOSS                                 Industry                                   Property               Other activities/Eliminations
ACCOUNT 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

Turnover 2,268.3 1,563.5 1,275.8 186.1 327.6 84.7 -290.1 -307.2 -192.1
Operating costs -1,870.5 -1,314.0 -1,101.9 -122.6 -268.0 -26.7 290.1 307.2 183.3
Depreciation -267.4 -161.5 -86.3 -8.1 -7.4 -7.0
Operating profit 130.4 88.0 87.6 55.4 52.2 51.0 -8.8
Net financial items -80.2 -26.8 -16.7 -25.1 -22.5 -13.7 -6.5 -1.5 4.1
Profit before taxation 50.2 61.2 70.9 30.3 29.7 37.3 -6.5 -1.5 -4.7

BALANCE SHEET at 31 December
Fixed assets 1,477.6 884.1 528.0 126.0 94.2 59.9
Current assets 467.6 351.0 205.0 945.3 619.9 609.5 -136.4
Liquid assets 251.6 -293.4 -108.0
Total assets 1,945.2 1,235.1 733.0 1,071.3 714.1 669.4 251.6 -429.8 -108.0
Shareholders’ equity 416.0 324.6 208.0 229.1 187.6 192.0
Long-term liabilities 848.1 493.1 296.0 49.2 172.7 -258.2 130.3 -303.2 159.9
Short-term liabilities 681.1 417.4 229.0 793.0 353.8 735.6 121.3 -126.6 -267.9
Total shareholders’ equity 1,945.2 1,235.1 733.0 1,071.3 714.1 669.4 251.6 -429.8 -108.0
and liabilities
Gross investments 929.1 223.8 308.0 27.8 3.1 20.5

PROFIT AND LOSS Group
ACCOUNT 2000 1999 1998

Turnover 8,005.0 6,486.8 5,645.0
Operating costs -7,353.2 -5,910.2 -5,158.8
Depreciation -387.9 -248.3 -198.4
Operating profit 263.9 328.3 287.8
Net financial items -78.9 -33.0 -5.5
Profit before taxation 185.0 295.3 282.3

BALANCE SHEET at 31 December
Fixed assets 2,654.4 1,471.3 1,234.9
Current assets 2,940.6 1,815.8 1,609.4
Liquid assets 832.0 278.4 369.1
Total assets 6,427.0 3,565.5 3,213.4
Shareholders’ equity 1,320.6 1,050.0 944.0
Long-term liabilities 2,070.7 517.6 197.7
Short-term liabilities 3,035.7 1,997.9 2,071.7
Total shareholders’ equity 6,427.0 3,565.5 3,213.4
and liabilities
Gross investments 1,634.8 526.0 589.7

Criteria for division of areas of activity
The areas of activity are divided into business areas,
each of which has risks and earnings different from the
others. This conforms to the grouping Veidekke uses for
internal control and reporting purposes. 

Presentation of areas of activity
The effect on profit of cash flow from the projects con-
stitutes a substantial part of net financial items. For that
reason, the pre-tax profit or loss gives a more correct
picture of the earnings of the areas of activity than the
operating profit or loss does. Financial items and the
pre-tax profit or loss are therefore shown in addition to
the operating profit or loss, and complete Balance
Sheets are also given for each area of activity.

Distribution of items that are not directly assignable
Costs that are not directly assignable are shared in pro-
portion to turnover. Shareholders’ equity, liquid assets
and interest-bearing liabilities are shared in proportion
to total assets.
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Non-distributed items
In the Profit and Loss Account, some items are not 
shared between the areas of activity. Non-distributed
items appear under ‘Other activities/Eliminations’ and
consist of:
•  Elimination of inter-divisional turnover/profit
•  Share of shipping partnerships’ profit or loss
•  Cost of discount on sale of shares to employees
•  Gains on sales of short-term share investments

In the Balance Sheet, eliminations of liquid assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are shown under ‘Other 
activities/Eliminations’.

Inter-divisional transactions
There are relatively few sales between the divisions, but
some contracts are carried out jointly by different entities.
Internal sales and collaboration take place on commercial
terms.

Distribution of turnover by geographical market
NOK 1,480 (NOK 426 million in 1999 and NOK 514.5 mil-
lion in 1998) of the Group’s total turnover derives from
operations outside Norway. International operations thus
represent 18% (6.6% in 1999 and 9.1% in 1998) of the
Group’s total turnover.

4. SHARES TO EMPLOYEES

2000 1999 1998
Number of shares sold to employees 126,000 611,458 823,720
Discount to employees 4.9 5.5
Contributions to Foundation 1.4 7.0 8.0
Employer’s contribution payable on discount 0.5 0.6

Veidekke has established a Foundation, which purchases Veidekke shares in the market and resells them to the
employees at a discount. Veidekke pays a contribution to the Foundation and this is charged to the Profit and Loss
Account. Veidekke also pays employer’s contributions on the discount. As of 2000, Veidekke has granted loans amoun-
ting to NOK 68,7 million to members of the corporate management and to key personnel for purchase of shares in
Veidekke (about 300 persons). These loans are partly interest-free and secured by mortgages on the shares.

2. GAINS ON SALES OF FIXED ASSETS

2000 1999 1998
Property 3.4 5.6 4.0
Machinery, etc. 12.4 20.9 10.1
Operations 27.6
Total gains on sales 43.4 26.5 14.1

Gains on sales of fixed assets are included in Turnover.
Sales of operations in 2000 refer to ready-mix concrete operations.

3. EMPLOYEES

Average number of employees 2000 1999
Nordic countries 5,021 4,175
Africa 810 1,951
Total 5,831 6,126

Turnover Regional Construction    Heavy Constr/International Hoffmann

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Norway 3,520.9 2,950.6 2,299.0 1,295.9 1,526.3 1,663.1
Nordic countries 241.9 136.0 42.3 526.0
Africa 234.2 220.0 369.5 14.0
Other countries 7.8 70.0 102.7
Total 3,520.9 2,950.6 2,299.0 1,779.8 1,952.3 2,177.6 540.0

Turnover                              Industry                                Property Other                                 Group

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Norway 1,823.3 1,563.5 1,275.8 174.9 327.6 84.7 -290.1 -307.2 -192.1 6,524.9 6,060.8 5,130.5
Nordic countries 445.0 11.2 1,224.1 136.0 42.3
Africa 248.2 220.0 369.5
Other countries 7.8 70.0 102.7
Total 2,268.3 1,563.5 1,275.8 186.1 327.6 84.7 -290.1 -307.2 -192.1 8,005.0 6,486.8 5,645.0

Regional Construction      Heavy Constr/International                 Hoffmann Total

Orders-on-hand 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Total 3,219 2,272 1,497 1,257 938 1,185 1,357 5,833 3,210 2,682
Of which due for 
completion 
within 12 months 2,683 1,715 1,283 879 771 1,009 1,120 4,682 2,486 2,292
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5. FINANCIAL INCOME/FINANCIAL EXPENSES

2000 1999 1998
Interest received 53.1 57.2 41.4
Other financial income 13.2 3.3 5.8
Financial income 66.3 60.5 47.2
Interest charges -140.9 -89.4 -49.7
Other financial expenses -4.3 -4.1 -3.0
Financial expenses -145.2 -93.5 -52.7
Financial income/Financial expenses -78.9 -33.0 -5.5

6. GOODWILL 2000
In Balance Sheet 

Purchase of operations Depreciation at 31 December
H. Hoffmann & Sønner 2.3 102.0
Stavdal 9.6 84.4
Br. Reme 2.3 79.5
Bøhler 4.0 76.0
Block Berge Bygg 4.3 44.7
Værbeskyttelse 5.5 43.7
Wilhelmsen & Sønner 4.2 34.2
Kynningsrud Fundamentering 1.6 30.7
HG Asfalt 3.2 24.0
Selmer Bostäder 0.5 18.3
Seby 4.8 14.5
UNI Bygg 1.9 11.6
Dokken & Østdal 1.4 10.9
Norske Stålbygg 1.8 9.2
Kongsvinger Asfalt 1.2 9.0
Trafikk & Anlegg 1.0 8.3
Amrock JV 10.5 -
Other operations 9.0 45.4
Total 69.1 646.4

7. GOODWILL, PROPERTY AND MACHINERY, ETC.

Accum. Book Depre- Depre-
Cost Addi- Dispo- depre- value ciation ciation

1 Jan tions sals ciation 31 Dec. for year in %
Goodwill 341.1 498.1 47.8 145.0 646.4 69.1 8-20
Property 309.0 172.2 10.9 86.6 383.7 8.0 2-5
Machinery, etc. 1.709.0 964.5 187.8 1.074.7 1.411.0 310.8 10-25
Total 2,359.1 1,634.8 246.5 1,306.3 2,441.1 387.9

Investments and sales (sales price)
2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Inv. Sales Inv. Sales Inv. Sales Inv. Sales Inv. Sales
Goodwill 498.1 64.5 101.7 127.1 62.0 24.0
Property 172.2 13.6 102.1 12.3 35.3 8.0 4.1 6.7 1.7
Machinery, etc. 964.5 62.2 322.2 57.6 427.3 26.6 255.0 22.5 181.6 15.8
Total 1,634.8 140.3 526.0 69.9 589.7 34.6 321.1 22.5 212.3 17.5

Sales of goodwill in 2000 refer to the sale of ready-mix concrete operations. On 1 January 2000, subsidiary Bautas AS
reduced the depreciation rates on machinery, etc. This led to a reduction in depreciation in 2000 of NOK 15 million.

8. PURCHASE OF OPERATIONS 2000

Operations Location Purchase Price
H. Hoffmann & Sønner Copenhagen 01.10 392.6
Stavdal/Weather Protection Oslo 01.01 279.7
Br. Reme Kristiansand 01.09 156.9
Bøhler Oslo 01.02 116.2
Kynningsrud Fundamentering Fredrikstad 01.07 90.1
Selmer Bostäder Stockholm 01.10 40.0
UNI Bygg Harstad 01.01 31.6
Trafikk & Anlegg Skien 01.04 25.0
Valdresbygg Valdres 01.01 13.3
Other operations 14.0
Total 1,159.4
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9. SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES 

Company Location Ownership share % Value in Balance Sheet*
Hoffmann & Sønner A/S Copenhagen 100 392.6
Stavdal ASA Oslo 100 279.7
Kolo Veidekke as Oslo 80 190.1
Br. Reme AS** Kristiansand 85 128.9
Jonsereds Holding AB Gothenburg 100 88.4
Bøhler Vedlikehold AS Oslo 100 72.3
Block Berge Bygg AS Klepp 100 64.3
Veidekke Bostad & Fastighet AB Stockholm 100 40.0
Kynningsrud Fundamentering AS Fredrikstad 79 23.7
UNI Bygg AS** Harstad 70 20.7
Norske Stålbygg AS Sandefjord 100 17.8
Trafikk & Anlegg AS** Skien 70 17.5
Veidekke Gjenvinning AS Oslo 100 17.0
Seby AS** Skedsmo 70 16.0
Noremco AS Oslo 100 12.6
Veidekke Bolig AS Oslo 100 10.9
Vecon AB Gothenburg 69 10.7
Veidekke Stockholm AB Stockholm 97 9.4
Valdresbygg AS** Valdres 70 9.2
Veidekke Shipping AS Oslo 100 6.4
Prosjektutvikling Bergen AS Bergen 100 6.0
Veidekke Eiendom AS Oslo 100 5.1
Veidekke Finans AS Oslo 100 5.0
Bautas AS Oslo 100 5.0
HG Betong AS Larvik 100 2.0
Other subsidiaries 6.2
Total 1,457.5

* Book value in the company’s accounts at 31 December 2000 (cost method).
** For these companies, Veidekke has agreements to purchase the remaining shares in three years’ time. 

These companies are treated in the accounts as if Veidekke has purchased 100% of the shares.

10. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES, ETC.

2000 1999 1998
Loans to employees 75.9 69.9 61.0
Loans to customers, etc. 44.3 34.6 42.5
Net pension funds 46.4 36.6 27.7
Miscellaneous shares 18.1 14.8 20.4
Loans to foundation for employees’ share purchase 5.4 13.4 16.0
Other receivables 23.2 10.9 10.5
Long-term receivables, etc. 213.3 180.2 178.1

11. NON-RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS

Non-residential projects involve the development and construction of non-residential buildings for sale for Veidekke’s
own account. Costs incurred in respect of land, buildings under construction and completed non-residential buildings
for sale are entered under this item in the Balance Sheet.

Non-residential projects Land for Under Completed
at 31.12.2000 Location development development buildings Total
Lørenskog Sentrum Vest Lørenskog 119.6 119.6
Sjøkanten Senter Harstad 53.1 53.1
Økern Næringstorg Oslo 43.2 43.2
Larvik Brannstasjon Larvik 36.5 36.5
Atlas Copco Ski 23.2 23.2
Berskau Bo- og Servicesenter Drammen 27.0 27.0
Porsgrunn Næringspark Porsgrunn 20.8 20.8
Projects in Denmark Denmark 31.2 31.2
Other projects Norway 77.6 8.1 10.1 95.8
Entered in Balance Sheet, total 108.8 221.1 120.5 450.4

2000 1999 1998
Gains on sale of non-residential projects 20.6 20.5 48.6
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12. RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS

Residential projects involve housing erected for sale for Veidekke’s own account. Costs incurred in respect of land for
development and housing under construction are entered under this item in the Balance Sheet. 

Residential projects 2000 1999 1998
Projects under construction 383.9 79.9 92.4
Land for development 119.3 186.5 189.0
Entered in Balance Sheet, total 503.2 266.4 281.4

Land for Under
Residential projects at 31.12.2000 Location development development Total
Bergheim Terrasse Trondheim 98.2 98.2
Bekkestua Bærum 55.9 55.9
Vestre Voksen Oslo 55.0 55.0
Smedasundet 55 Haugesund 36.9 36.9
Thorleifs Allé Oslo 24.2 24.2
Workinnmarka Tromsø 22.8 22.8
Øståsen Son 22.4 22.4
Løktabakken Drøbak 19.4 19.4
Gamle Bygdevei Oslo 19.0 19.0
Projects in Sweden Stockholm 76.6 76.6
Other projects Norway 64.3 8.5 72.8
Entered in Balance Sheet, total 119.3 383.9 503.2

Veidekke has signed a contract along with OBOS (a large housing association) to purchase the property belonging to
the Norwegian Trade Fair Foundation at Skøyen in Oslo. This property will be taken over in the 3rd quarter 2002.
Veidekke’s share of the purchase price is approximately NOK 240 million, depending on the degree of utilisation. 
Plans for the property include the building of 250 dwellings (Veidekke’s share).

13. STOCKS 
Stocks comprise project stocks and the Industry Division’s stocks. The first consists of materials, spare parts, tools,
etc., and the second of crushed stone and raw materials for asphalt and tools, etc. for Plant Hire operations.

14. DEBTORS
2000 1999 1998

Book debtors 1,560.4 1,096.8 780.6
Provision for bad debts -33.9 -30.6 -22.7
Due from customers 112.6 128.5 137.7
Completed, not invoiced 447.2 183.4 204.1
Invoiced, not completed -364.7 -358.6 -263.5
Debtors 1,721.6 1,019.5 836.2

15. LIQUID ASSETS
2000 1999 1998

Bank deposits 686.2 265.2 320.2
Short-term investments 145.8 13.2 48.9
Liquid assets 832.0 278.4 369.1

16. RECONCILIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
2000 1999 1998

Majority Minority Total Total Total
Shareholders’ equity at 1 January 977.4 72.6 1,050.0 944.0 798.2
Share issue 191.2 191.2
Profit for the year 120.6 7.0 127.6 203.3 201.4
Dividends -53.2 -2.0 -55.2 -98.9 -61.3
Addition minority interests 9.1 9.1 1.6 5.7
Currency adjustment -2.1 -2.1
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 1,233.9 86.7 1,320.6 1,050.0 944.0

The minority interests refer largely to Kolo Veidekke a.s, of which Veidekke owns 80%.
Share issue: 3,798,553 shares were issued at a price of NOK 52.00

Total price of shares issued 197.5
Issue costs -8.8
Tax on issue costs 2.5
Increase in shareholders’ equity 191.2
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Shares owned by key personnel at 31 December 2000

Board of Directors Number of shares 
Helge B. Andresen 30,598
Christian Bruusgaard 1) 23,817
Peder Chr. Løvenskiold 3) 19,400
Kristian Omsland  2) 3) 10,000
Steinar Krogstad 1,943
Ove Ågedal 775
Jan Kopstad 630
Subtotal 87,163

President and CEO
Terje R. Venold 3) 74,323

Members of the Corporate Management Team
Torkel Backelin 75,229
Jørgen G. Michelet 3) 65,792
Ole Arnfinn Opsahl 50,049
Leif E. Johansen 3) 45,455
Dag Andresen 44,055
Petter Eiken 27,447
Kai Krüger Henriksen 12,342
Hårek Elvenes 11,273
Øivind Larsen 2,200
Subtotal 333,842
Total 495,328

1) Chairman of the Board
2) Has an ad hoc option on 20,000 Veidekke shares at a redemption price of NOK 65.00. 

The option period runs for two years and the exercise price is NOK 7.00.
3) Including shares owned by closely associated parties and companies.

17. NUMBER OF SHARES, SHAREHOLDERS, ETC.

Veidekke ASA’ s largest shareholders Number of shares Ownership share in % 
Folketrygdfondet 3,360,000 12.6
Storebrand Livsforsikring AS 3,358,930 12.6
Avansefondene 1,870,163 7.0
K-Holding AS 1,297,100 4.9
OBOS Forretningsbygg AS 1,058,358 4.0
K-Fondene 1,049,024 4.0
KLP Forsikring Aksje 961,333 3.6
Vital Forsikring ASA 765,912 2.9
Tine Pensjonskasse 475,000 1.8
Firstnordic Fondene 426,400 1.6
Storebrand Fondene 404,400 1.5
Industrifinans Fondene 389,011 1.5
Bergtor AS 350,000 1.3
Hodne Kapital AS 325,000 1.2
Odin Norge AS 313,582 1.2
Bjarne Kynningsrud as 262,700 1.0
Total 16 largest 16,666,913 62.7
Employees 4,105,363 15.4
Other shareholders 5,817,597 21.9
Total 26,589,873 100.0

The total number of shareholders is 3,452.
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18. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAX

Taxation 2000 1999 1998
Tax payable 63.1 90.8 77.6
Change in deferred tax -5.7 1.2 3.3
Total 57.4 92.0 80.9

Deviation in taxation 2000 1999
28% of profit before taxation 51.8 28.0% 82.7 28.0%
Actual taxation 57.4 31.0% 92.0 31.2%
Deviation -5.6 -3.0% -9.3 -3.2%

Deviation in taxation is due to
Non-deductible costs -3.0 -3.1
Depreciation of goodwill -11.0 -5.2
Upward adjustment opening value of shares sold 4.8
Other items 3.6 -1.0
Total -5.6 -9.3

Deferred tax 2000 1999 1998
Timing differences
Short-term items 271.3 100.7 185.3
Accelerated depreciation 334.9 229.3 93.2
Gain and loss account 50.9 26.8 46.8
Other long-term items -0.8 31.8 27.2
Basis deferred tax 656.3 388.6 352.5

Deferred tax (28%) 183.8 108.8 98.7

19. PENSIONS
Veidekke ASA and some of its subsidiaries have contributory pension schemes for their employees, which are covered
in a life assurance company. Most of Veidekke’s companies in Norway are also bound by agreed early retirement 
schemes. Subsidiary H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S in Denmark and a subsidiary in Sweden have non-contributory 
pension schemes for their employees. 3,159 current employees and 614 pensioners are covered by contributory 
pensions schemes.

2000 1999 1998
Veidekke ASA Kolo Other Group Group Group

Secured Unsecured Veidekke a.s companies Total Total Total
Pension expenses
Earned during year (present value) -19.6 -8.7 -5.2 -10.0 -43.5 -32.1 -26.0
Interest on commitments -17.5 -3.3 -4.3 -4.7 -29.8 -24.7 -21.9
Return on funds 21.9 5.3 3.8 31.0 25.0 23.0
Deviation in estimate entered 
in Profit and Loss Account -0.3 -1.6 -1.2 -0.2 -3.3 -4.8 -3.1
Change over-financing 1.5 1.5 -0.9
Pension expenses -15.5 -13.6 -3.9 -11.1 -44.1 -36.6 -28.9
Entered in Balance Sheet
Pension funds 300.9 71.0 54.5 426.4 348.4 316.4
Pension commitm. (present value) -278.9 -58.2 -70.9 -83.1 -491.1 -406.7 -355.5
Net funds/commitments 22.0 -58.2 0.1 -28.6 -64.7 -58.3 -39.1
Deviation in estimate not entered 
in Profit and Loss Account 17.1 25.4 21.6 0.2 64.3 77.2 59.0
Over-financed not entered -18.6 -18.6 -20.1 -20.1
Net funds/commitments entered 
in Balance Sheet 39.1 -32.8 3.1 -28.4 -19.0 -1.2 -0.2



NOK 46.4 million of net pension funds/commitments amounting to NOK –19 million at end 2000 has been entered
under long-term receivables, while NOK 65.4 million has been entered under long-term liabilities. Pension commit-
ments and earnings for the year include employer’s national insurance contributions. 

In 2000, a subsidiary in Sweden was refunded NOK 5.9 million in excess premiums. This was entered in the Profit and
Loss Account (non-contributory scheme). The table above shows the ordinary pension costs excluding the refund.

Each year deviations occur between the estimated and actual return on pension funds and between estimated and
actual pension commitments. Deviations are entered in the Balance Sheet up to a limit of 10% of whichever is highest
of pension funds and pension commitments. When accumulated deviations exceed this limit, the surplus is entered in
the Profit and Loss Account over the remaining accumulation period.

Financial assumptions %
Return on pension funds 8.0
Discount rate 7.0
Annual wage growth 3.3
Annual basic pension rate adjustment 3.3
Annual adjustment of pensions being paid 2.5
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Notes to the Accounts

20. LONG-TERM DEBTS TO CREDIT-ISSUING INSTITUTIONS, ETC.

Long-terms debts 2000 1999 1998
Long-term drawings on committed borrowing facilities 1,175.0
Other loans 564.0 344.2 45.9
Debts to credit-issuing institutions 1,739.0 344.2 45.9

Veidekke has committed borrowing facilities totalling NOK 1,925 million in Nordea. Of these, NOK 1,025 million repre-
sents instalment loans with a maturity of three to five years. NOK 900 million refers to a committed borrowing facility,
which is reduced by the amount outstanding at any time in short-term bonds. Veidekke has a short-term bond pro-
gramme totalling NOK 300 million.

Veidekke’s credit facilities in Nordea expire on 2 October 2005. These facilities, which are based on a negative mort-
gage declaration, are conditional on Veidekke’s financial key figures (covenants) and on limitations on guarantees and
security, sale of significant assets without consent and own account risks in residential and non-residential projects.
Veidekke meets all of the conditions set out in the loan agreement and has satisfactory freedom of action.

Currency risk relating to Veidekke’s subsidiaries abroad is limited to financing assets in the same currencies, primarily
through currency swaps. At the end of 2000, 50% of Veidekke’s net interest-bearing liabilities were linked to long-term
fixed interest-rate agreements. The remaining liabilities follow the general trend in money market rates.

Maturity/repayment structure 2001 2002 2003 2004 After 2004
Reduction of NOK 1,925 committed borrowing facility 157.5 182.5 210.0 175.0 1,200.0
Other loans 48.9 23.6 23.3 299.4 168.8
Total 206.4 206.1 233.3 474.4 1,368.8

Key figures 2000 1999 1998
Unused borrowing facilities 750.0 325.0
Weighted fixed interest rate at 31 December 7.2% 7.0% 8.9%
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21. SHORT-TERM DEBTS TO CREDIT-ISSUING INSTITUTIONS, ETC.

Short-term debts 2000 1999 1998
Bank overdraft 74.5 15.0 11.2
Debt-instrumented loans and building loans linked with property development 349.5 232.0 243.4
Other loans 15.0 50.0 235.0
Debts to credit-issuing institutions 439.0 297.0 489.6

Maturity/repayment structure 2001 2002 2003 2004 After 2004
Bank overdraft 74.5
Debt-instrumented loans and building loans linked with 
property development 76.4 46.1 50.2 6.5 170.3
Other loans 15.0
Total 165.9 46.1 50.2 6.5 170.3

Key figures 2000 1999 1998
Unused drawing rights 50.0 50.0 51.0
Weighted effective loan interest at 31 December 7.7% 7.1% 9.0%

22. CREDITORS

Included under ‘Creditors’ are accrued costs and provision for work under guarantee, etc.

23. UNPAID GOVERNMENT CHARGES

‘Unpaid government charges’ consist of unpaid VAT, withheld tax, social security contributions, holiday pay, etc.

24. TAX PAYABLE AND DIVIDENDS

2000 1999 1998
Tax payable 70.6 88.4 75.9
Allocated to dividends 55.1 62.8 61.3
Tax payable and dividends 125.7 151.2 137.2

25. OTHER SHORT TERM LIABILITIES

2000 1999 1998
Advance payments from customers 172.1 47.6 101.7
Other liabilities 96.2 71.4 73.3
Other short-term liabilities 268.3 119.0 175.0

26. MORTGAGES, GUARANTEES AND JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITIES

Mortgages 2000 1999 1998
Book liabilities secured by mortgages, etc. 383.9 270.2 265.0
Book value of mortgaged buildings/land 440.6 389.0 330.6

Guarantees 2000 1999 1998
Guarantees to employees 0.1 0.1
Guarantees to associated companies 11.4 26.3 43.3
Other guarantees 6.6 13.2 4.5
Total guarantees 18.0 39.6 47.9

The Group has issued negative mortgage declarations for loans and guarantees.

Guarantees furnished by Veidekke ASA to subsidiaries

2000 1999 1998
Total 977.4 693.4 562.5
of which joint and several liability for subsidiaries’ withdrawals  
from Group account 687.2 515.4 342.9

As a result of its participation in partnerships and joint ventures, Veidekke could become liable for other participants’
inability to fulfil their obligations. However, Veidekke cannot be called to account until the company in question 
actually fails to fulfil its obligations.
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28. PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

Taken to income on projects in progress 2000 1999 1998
Accumulated income 5,904 2,961 3,049
Accumulated contributions 306 210 148

Loss-bringing projects in progress * 2000 1999 1998
Remaining turnover 83 75 105

* Provision had been made in the accounts for the estimated loss on these projects.

27. PAYMENTS TO KEY PERSONNEL

In 2000, the Group auditors received NOK 5.8 million for auditing and NOK 2.3 million for consultancy services. For
acquired companies, the fee covers the whole year.

Payments to members of the Board of Directors totalled NOK 0.9 million and the salary paid to the President & CEO was
NOK 2.2 million.

The President & CEO’s contract of employment can be terminated by either party giving 12 months’ notice. On terminati-
on of this contract the President & CEO is also guaranteed a salary for a further 12 months. A reduction corresponding to
the salary and emoluments received by the President & CEO is made in the salary guarantee.

Veidekke has granted loans for the purchase of Veidekke shares to the President & CEO and members of the Corporate
Management totalling NOK 12.8 million at 31 December 2000. This amount is shared between President & CEO Terje R.
Venold (NOK 2.8 million) and members of the Corporate Management Torkel Backelin (NOK 2.3 million), Jørgen G.
Michelet (NOK 2.3 million), Ole Arnfinn Opsahl (NOK 1.4 million), Dag Andresen (NOK 1.2 million), Leif E. Johansen
(NOK 0.9 million), Petter Eiken (NOK 0.9 million), Kai Krüger Henriksen (NOK 0.5 million) and Hårek Elvenes (NOK 0.5
million). These loans are partly interest free and secured by mortgage on the shares. The President & CEO also has an
ordinary loan of NOK 1 million.

29. UNCERTAINTY AND CONDITIONAL OUTCOME

Crediting projects to the accounts as they proceed entails some uncertainty, since the figures are based on estimates
and evaluations. For ongoing projects, uncertainty is linked with progress, disputes, work under guarantee, final prog-
noses, etc. The final profit or loss on a project may therefore differ from the anticipated outcome. There is also the
possibility of disputes arising that have to be settled by arbitration or in a court of law. At the end of 2000, Veidekke
was not involved in any major disputes or other uncertainties that will significantly affect future results.
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30. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Purchase of companies

In 2000, Veidekke purchased companies, which have given net cash outlay of NOK 468.9 million (NOK 27.7 million in
1999 and NOK 45 million in 1998). The following figures were entered in the Group Balance Sheet for these purchases: 

2000 1999 1998
Liquid assets 419.4 21.3 3.4
Other current assets 883.0 22.3 12.7
Fixed assets 999.0 66.2 72.0
Debts to credit-issuing institutions -85.4
Operating debts -823.9 -33.0 -15.5
Payable/deferred tax -80.7 -9.3 -3.8
Long-term liabilities -372.4 -18.5 -20.4
Cost price for purchases 939.0 49.0 48.4
Credit for purchases -50.7
Liquid assets taken over -419.4 -21.3 -3.4
Net cash outlay 468.9 27.7 45.0

Goodwill, property and machinery, etc.

Investments 2000 1999 1998
Entered in accounts* 1,634.8 526.0 589.7
Purchase of subsidiaries -999.0 -66.2 -71.7
Cash outlay 635.8 459.8 518.0

Sales 2000 1999 1998
Entered in accounts * 140.3 69.9 34.6
Payments referring to last year 20.1
Cash payments received 140.3 69.9 54.7

* See Note 7 – Goodwill, property and machinery, etc.

31. TRANSACTIONS WITH CLOSELY ASSOCIATED PARTIES

Veidekke’s Chairman of the Board, Christian Bruusgaard, owns 37% and is Chairman of the Board of Filtbygg AS.
Filtbygg AS has commissioned Veidekke to build a residential and service centre in Drammen. The terms of this con-
tract are competitive and the price is NOK 50.3. The completion date is approximately 1 April 2001.

32. PRO FORMA ACCOUNTS

Profit and Loss Account 2000  1999

Turnover 9,795.0  10,065.0

Operating profit/loss  229.4  392.0
Net financial items  -101.4  -117.4
Profit before taxes  128.0  274.6
Taxation -45.2  -92.9
Profit for the year 82.8  181.7

Of which minority interests 7.0  7.9

Earnings per share (NOK) 3.01  7.48

The pro forma account shows the effect of the changes in the composition of the Group, i.e. purchases and sales of
operations during 2000. This provides more relevant figures for comparison in the future. Corrections have been made
in the pro forma figures as if the purchases and sales took place on 1 January 1999. Companies that were acquired in
2000 are thus included in full in the figures, while operations that were sold in 2000 have been taken out. Consideration
has been given in the calculation to financing costs for the purchases and sales, and for depreciation of added values.
An interest rate of 7% has been applied. Restructuring costs etc. have been assigned at cost. There is more uncertainty
attached to pro forma figures than to historical accounting figures.
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VEIDEKKE ASA Note 2000 1999

(Figures in NOK million)

Turnover 3,826.3 4,224.7

Subcontractors -1,930.6 -1,931.7
Cost of materials -685.2 -860.5
Wages 19, A -969.2 -955.2
Other operating expenses B -185.5 -199.3
Depreciation D -59.5 -59.6
Total operating costs -3,830.0 -4,006.3

Operating profit -3.7 218.4

Financial income C 119.6 164.9
Financial expenses -78.1 -59.3

Profit before taxation 37.8 324.0

Taxation F 6.2 -69.8

Profit for the year 44.0 254.2

Transfers

Group contribution - -76.2
Dividend 53.2 62.7
Other shareholders’ equity -9.2 267.7

Total 44.0 254.2

Profit and Loss Account
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VEIDEKKE ASA 

At 31 December Note 2000 1999

(Figures in NOK million)

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets

Goodwill D 50.0 -
Buildings/land D 67.3 62.5
Machinery, etc. D 143.6 147.5
Shares in subsidiaries 9 1,457.5 369.5
Shares in associated companies 8.6 62.0
Long-term receivables, group companies 335.2 201.3
Long-term receivables, etc. 149.4 147.5
Total fixed assets 2,211.6 990.3

Current assets

Non-residential projects 53.3 40.1
Residential projects 36.5 45.3
Stocks 13 49.0 52.5
Debtors 497.2 521.5
Short-term receivables, group companies 240.1 220.5
Other short-term receivables 7.0 12.5
Liquid assets 550.9 504.8
Total current assets 1,434.0 1,397.2

Total assets 3,645.6 2,387.5

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 66.5 57.0
Share premium reserve 200.3 18.6
Reserve for valuation differences 4.3 4.3
Other shareholders’ equity 813.0 822.2
Total shareholders’ equity E 1,084.1 902.1

Long-term liabilities

Pension commitments 19 32.8 28.4
Deferred taxes F 95.6 91.1
Debts to credit-issuing institutions, etc. 1,210.0 36.5
Other long-term liabilities - 0.9
Total long-term liabilities 1,338.4 156.9

Current liabilities

Debts to credit-issuing institutions, etc. 5.1 57.7
Creditors 22 873.1 840.5
Unpaid government charges 23 157.3 170.0
Payable taxes and dividends G 53.3 122.2
Short-term debt, group companies 62.4 98.0
Other short-term debts 71.9 40.1
Total current liabilities 1,223.1 1,328.5

Total shareholders’s equity and liabilities 3,645.6 2,387.5 

Balance Sheet
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Cash Flow Statement

VEIDEKKE ASA 2000 1999

(Figures in NOK million)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 37.8 324.0
Tax paid -44.8 -40.1
Depreciation 59.5 59.6
Gain on sale of fixed assets -7.1 -123.2
Pensions, difference cost/paid -5.5 -3.2
Generated from operating activities 39.9 217.1

Change in non-residential and residential projects -4.4 23.0
Change in debtors 24.3 31.2
Change in other current assets -76.6 -57.6
Change in creditors 32.6 -2.6
Change in other operating debts -32.7 -64.2
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) -16.9 146.9

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment -116.0 -64.5
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12.7 304.9
Other investments -1,160.5 -141.4
Net cash flow from investment activities (B) -1,263.8 99.0

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New long-term borrowing 1,187.2 9.0
Repayments long-term debts -14.6 -3.5
New short-term borrowing - 2.8
Repayments short-term debts -52.6 -209.3
Share issue 191.2 -
Group contribution paid 78.4 -34.2
Dividend paid -62.8 -57.0
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,326.8 -292.2

NET CHANGE IN LIQUID ASSETS (A+B+C) 46.1 -46.3

Liquid assets at 1 January 504.8 551.1
Liquid assets at 31 December 550.9 504.8
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VEIDEKKE ASA

The accounting policies on pages 25 and 26 and part of the notes for the Group, also apply to the parent company.

A. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
2000 1999

Average number of employees 2,504 2,556

B. REMUNERATION TO THE AUDITORS

In 2000, remuneration to the company’s auditors amounts to NOK 1.3 million for auditing fees and NOK 0.7 million for
consultancy fees.

C. FINANCIAL INCOME AND FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial income includes dividends and contributions paid from subsidiaries to the parent company amounting to
NOK 44.5 million (61.7).

D. GOODWILL, PROPERTY AND MACHINERY, ETC.

Accum. Book Depre- Depre-
Cost depre- value ciation ciation

1 January Additions Disposals ciation 31 Dec. for year in %
Goodwill 50.0 50.0
Property 97.7 7.4 37.8 67.3 2.6 2-5
Machinery, etc. 324.8 58.6 72.2 167.6 143.6 56.9 10-25
Total 422.5 116.0 72.2 205.4 260.9 59.5

E. RECONCILIATION SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2000 1999
Shareholders’ equity 1 January 902.1 634.4
Share issue 191.2
Profit for the year 44.0 254.2
Dividends -53.2 -62.7
Group contribution 76.2
Shareholders’ equity 31 December 1,084.1 902.1

F. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAX

Deviation in taxation 2000 1999
28% of profit before taxation 10.6 28.0% 90.7 28.0%
Actual taxation -6.2 69.8 21.6%
Deviation 16.8 20.9 6.4%

Deviation in taxation is due to
Non-deductible costs -2.0 -2.2
Dividends received/Group contributions 8.9 17.6
Adjustment of opening value of shares – sale/liquidation of shares 4.8 4.5
Other items 5.1 1.0
Total 16.8 20.9

Deferred tax 2000 1999
Timing differences
Short-term items 246.3 211.9
Accelerated depreciation 73.8 103.4
Gain and loss account 15.1 11.3
Other long-term items 6.2 -1.2
Basis deferred tax 341.4 325.4

Deferred tax (28%) 95.6 91.1
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To the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of Veidekke ASA

We have audited the annual financial statements of Veidekke ASA as of 31 December 2000 showing a profit of 
NOK 44.0 million for the parent company and a profit of NOK 127.6 million for the Group. We have also audited the
information in the Board of Directors’ report concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption and
the proposal for the allocation of the profit. The financial statements comprise the balance sheet, the income and cash
flow statements, the accompanying notes and the Group accounts. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s Board of Directors and its President and CEO. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the finan-
cial statements and on other information as required by the Norwegian Act on Auditing and Auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Norwegian Act on Auditing and Auditors and generally accepted audi-
ting principles. These principles require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall the
financial statement presentation. To the extent required by law and generally accepted auditing principles, an audit
also comprises a review of the management of the Company’s financial affairs and its accounting and internal control
systems. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,
• the financial statements are prepared in accordance with law and regulations and present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Company and of the Group as of December 31, 2000, and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

• the company’s management have fulfilled its duty to properly registrate and document the accounting information 
in accordance with law and generally accepted accounting principles

• the information in the Board of Directors’ report concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption,
and the proposal for the allocation of the profit are consistent with the financial statements and comply with law and
regulations.

Oslo, 1 March 2001
ERNST & YOUNG AS

G. PAYABLE TAXES AND DIVIDENDS

Accrued taxes payable amount to NOK 0.1 million (59.5). Dividends payable amount to NOK 53.2 million (62.7).

Oslo, 23 February 2001

Christian Bruusgaard
Chairman of the Board

Helge B. Andresen Jan Kopstad

Håkon Langballe Peder Chr. Løvenskiold Kristian Omsland

Ove Ågedal Hilde Aasheim Terje R. Venold
President and CEO

Auditors’ report for 2000

Steinar Krogstad

Eirik Larsson
State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)

Ernst Alsaker
State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)

Note: This translation from Norwegian has been prepared for information purposes only.
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Key Figures

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 
OPERATIONS *
Turnover 8,005.0 6,486.8 5,645.0 4,960.8 4,129.4
Operating profit 263.9 328.3 287.8 248.6 113.6
Profit before taxation 185.0 295.3 282.3 270.4 123.0
Ordinary profit for the year 1) 127.6 203.3 201.4 193.5 86.4
Order Book, Construction 5,833 3,210 2,682 2,710 2,261

PROFITABILITY
Operating profit margin (%) 2) 3.3 5.1 5.1 5.0 2.8
Gross profit margin (%) 3) 2.3 4.6 5.0 5.5 3.0
Return on total assets (%) 4) 5.3 11.5 11.7 13.0 7.3
Return on working capital (%) 5) 10.2 24.5 26.8 29.4 15.7
Return on equity (%) 6) 10.8 20.4 23.1 26.5 13.7

CAPITAL ADEQUACY *
Total assets 6,427.0 3,565.5 3,213.4 2,495.0 2,144.7
Total shareholders’ equity 7) 1,320.6 1,050.0 944.0 798.2 661.8
Equity ratio (%) 8) 20.5 29.4 29.4 32.0 30.9
Gross investments 1,634.8 526.0 589.7 321.1 212.3

LIQUIDITY 
Liquidity 31 December * 832.0 278.4 369.1 400.4 324.0
Current ratio 9) 1.24 1.05 0.96 1.13 1.06
Quick ratio 10) 0.87 0.68 0.60 0.78 0.91
Net interest-bearing liabilities 11) -1,319.2 -206.8 -32.4 232.3 63.8

SHARES**
Market price 31 December (NOK) 57.00 74.50 45.00 64.50 50.25
Earnings per share (NOK) 12) 4.79 8.41 8.10 7.91 3.39
Market price/earnings (P/E) 11.9 8.7 5.4 8.0 14.5
Cash flow per share (NOK)13) 20.18 19.15 16.78 15.22 10.19
Market price/cash flow 2.8 3.8 2.6 4.2 5.0
Dividend per share (NOK) 2.00 2.75 2.50 2.38 1.38
Outstanding shares (average 1,000) 25,199 22,792 22,792 22,792 22,478

EMPLOYEES
Average number of employees in the Nordic countries 5,021 4,175 4,077 3,176 3,111
Wages and social benefits * 1,950 1,556 1,375 1,163 1,025

*   Figures in NOK million
** The figures have been adjusted for the share split (1:2) in 2000.

1. Ordinary profit for the year: Profit for the year plus extraordinary items less tax on extraordinary items.

2. Operating profit margin: Operating profit as a percentage of turnover.

3. Gross profit margin: Profit before taxation as a percentage of turnover.

4. Return on total assets: Profit before taxation plus financial expenses as a percentage of average total assets.

5. Return on working capital: Profit before taxation plus financial expenses as a percentage of average total 
assets less interest-free short-term liabilities and interest-free long-term liabilities.

6. Return on equity: Profit after taxation as a percentage of average total shareholders’ equity.

7. Total shareholders’ equity: Book equity including minority interests.

8. Equity ratio: Total equity as a percentage of total assets at 31 December.

9. Current ratio: Current assets divided by short-term liabilities.

10. Quick ratio: Most liquid current assets divided by short-term liabilities.

11. Net interest-bearing liabilities: Liquid assets plus interest-bearing receivables from project financing less 
short-term interest-bearing liabilities less long-term interest-bearing liabilities. 

12. Earnings per share: Ordinary profit for the year divided by the average number of non paid-up shares 
(fully watered down).

13. Cash flow per share: Profit before extraordinary items plus ordinary depreciation less payable tax on 
ordinary profit less minority interests divided by the average number of non paid-up shares.
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Risk Factors relating to Veidekke’s Operations

Economic trends
In Norway, changes in the building and construction
market have traditionally been linked with economic
developments. Factors such as interest rates, employ-
ment and profit performance in the business sector are
of decisive importance for the level of activity in the
contracting business. A rise of approximately 1% is
expected in the building and construction market in
2001 and 2002. Activity in the housing market is expec-
ted to continue to increase, while activity in the non-
residential market will decline somewhat. A levelling
off is anticipated in the heavy construction market, with
the possibility of an upturn in 2002.

There is little to indicate a setback in the domestic eco-
nomy. Interest rates are expected to remain stable, with
prospects of a limited fall. Movements in the oil price
are always difficult to predict. A lower oil price will
have a direct negative effect on the Norwegian econo-
my. However, this stimulates the international econo-
my, which in turn boosts the Norwegian economy. The
international economy may take a more negative turn
than indicated by the prognoses; this uncertainty is lin-
ked in particular with developments in the USA and
Japan. This uncertainty may cause some investors to
postpone scheduled investments and this could lead to
temporary fluctuations in the building and construction
market.

Last year’s events relating to a trade cycle tax on non-
residential building shows that the political risk can be
considerable. Political uncertainty regarding the remo-
val of the investment tax in the autumn this year may
also result in an unwanted decline in building activity at
the end of the year.

The prognoses for building and construction activity in
Denmark presume growth in exports and moderate
domestic demand. If there is more of a decline in the
international economy than presumed in the progno-
ses, this will have a negative effect on activity in
Denmark in the form of lower exports, a rise in interest
rates and a further downturn in domestic demand.

The Swedish economy is more dependent on interna-
tional developments and particularly on developments
in the IT sector. A ‘hard landing’ in the American 
economy will lead to an unexpected fall in exports
combined with further rises in the interest rates. This
could have a negative effect on the housing and 
commercial property markets in Sweden.

Project risks
The general rule in building and heavy construction
projects is that the client is responsible for the technical
solution that is chosen, while the contractor’s risk is lin-
ked with execution. However, Veidekke has a conside-
rable number of projects, which have been developed
in partnership with customers. For these projects

Veidekke has accepted more responsibility for the tech-
nical design (turnkey contracts). It is Veidekke’s experi-
ence that the realisation of such projects entails few
unforeseen technical problems. This is due, among
other things, to the thorough analysis that is made of
the technical risk before the contract is signed.

It is also Veidekke’s experience that amendments and
additions will be made to contracts once the project is
under way. Payment for these changes or additions is
not always clearly described in the contract. Until 
agreement has been reached on settlement, this can
put pressure on liquidity. However, Veidekke has been
involved in few disputes and always makes a point of
documenting and reporting any deviations, so that
agreement can be reached with the customer.

In the case of major, exceptionally demanding projects,
it is common to enter into joint ventures with other
contractors with a view, for example, to spreading
risks.

Projects for Veidekke’s own account
Activities for Veidekke’s own account constitute an
increasingly large share of its total project portfolio.
Most of these activities are connected with the building
of housing. The risk involved is mainly linked with
‘falls’ in the housing market. With the prospect of a
stable interest rate and a large pent-up demand for
houses, there is little indication of a significant fall in
prices in the housing market. However, it is unlikely
that housing prices will continue to rise as steeply as
they have been doing in recent years.

Before commencing projects for its own account,
Veidekke makes it a condition that a given number of
units have been sold in advance. Most of Veidekke’s
housing projects are located in a few large cities. The
bulk of them are in the Oslo area where the sites are
located in attractive residential areas with a relatively
high price level. Veidekke keeps a close watch on deve-
lopments in the housing market, and the total number
of projects under construction at any time never invol-
ves more than a limited risk.

International operations
In 2000, Veidekke’s international operations represented
about 18% of its total turnover, 3% in Africa and 15% in
Scandinavia. Operations in Africa are concentrated
mainly in Tanzania. The risks involved in operating in
Africa are primarily connected with settlement for work
completed. Veidekke seeks to minimise this risk by con-
centrating on development aid projects, projects finan-
ced by international financial institutions and contracts
for large multi-national companies.
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Shareholder Policy and Ownership Structure

Shareholder policy
Veidekke is committed to securing for its sharehol-
ders a high and stable return on their investment in
Veidekke shares. The shareholders’ return is a com-
bination of share price and dividend and it should
reflect the financial development of the company.
Veidekke wishes its shares to be regarded as a
liquid and promising investment option. The com-
pany stresses the importance of providing the mar-
ket with accurate and relevant information at the
right time, so that its shares can be priced as cor-
rectly as possible. Existing shareholders will, in
principle, be given pre-emption rights whenever the
share capital is increased.

Share prices
Veidekke’s shareholders have enjoyed a solid return
on their shares since Veidekke was first listed on
the stock exchange in 1986. The shareholders have
had an average annual return of 14.3% in the form
of a higher share price and dividend. Prices on the
Oslo Stock Exchange rose by 11.5% during the
same period. In 2000, Veidekke’s share price perfor-
mance including distributed dividends was –19.3%,
while the Oslo Stock Exchange’s all-share index fell
by 8.1%. 

Dividends 
It is Veidekke’s intention to pay a competitive divi-
dend. This dividend shall be between 30% and 40%
of the company’s profit for the year. For the last five
years, Veidekke has distributed about 33% of its
profit for the year in dividends. For the financial
year 2000, the Board of Directors recommends a
dividend of NOK 2.- per share. This corresponds to
a payout ratio of 41.8%. The dividend will be paid
on 23 May 2001 to all shareholders who are registe-
red as owners on the date of the Annual General
Meeting, 3 May 2001.

Return on the company’s equity capital
Veidekke aims to achieve a return on equity of
about 20%. This has been achieved in the three pre-
vious years. In 2000, return on equity was 10.2%.

Trading in Veidekke shares
Veidekke shares were first listed on the Oslo Stock
Exchange’s main list in June 1986. They are sold in
blocks of 200. In 2000, 10.5 million Veidekke shares
were traded on the Oslo Stock Exchange, where the
turnover rate was 42%. The company works con-
tinuously to maintain satisfactory liquidity in its
shares. This is done primarily through ongoing
information to the stock market and investors.

Further growth for Veidekke
Veidekke has undergone expansive growth and
development since the beginning of the 1980s.
Through both acquisitions and organic growth,
Veidekke has moved into place as Norway’s leading
contractor with a significant position in Denmark
and in Sweden. In the course of 2000, the company
purchased nine companies in order to strengthen
its position in selected product and market areas.
Before acquiring companies, Veidekke makes it a
condition that their profitability will increase
Veidekke’s earnings per share and that they will
contribute to the strategic development of the
Veidekke Group.
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Distribution of shares at 31 December 2000
Shareholding Number of Number of
From To shareholders shares %
1 - 100 680 29,261 0.11
101 - 1,000 1,698 668,996 2.52
1,001 - 10,000 855 2,809,138 10.56
10,001 - 100,000 191 5,912,226 22.23
100,001 - 28 17,170,252 64.58
Total 3,452 26,589,873 100.00
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Shareholder Policy and Ownership Structure

Employee-owners
It is an advantage for Veidekke as a company, and thus for all of its shareholders,
if its employees have a substantial ownership share in the company. The value
of a contracting company depends very much on its structure and its employees.
The involvement of its employees as shareholders is therefore an important and
positive element in the development of the company. It is Veidekke’s aim to see
at least half of its employees holding shares in the company with a total owner-
ship share of close on 15%. It is desirable that people in senior management
positions each hold a significant number of shares.

Veidekke endeavours at all times to pave the way for greater employee participa-
tion. Each year it gives employees the opportunity to purchase shares in the
company at a discount on the market price. Veidekke also offers about 200 key
employees financial assistance to purchase shares in the company. 

Ownership structure 
At 31 December 2000, Veidekke had 3,452 shareholders, including 79 foreign
investors. The percentage of shares owned by foreign investors stood at 0.4% at
the end of the year. 

The company’s largest shareholders are Storebrand (12.6%) and
Folketrygdfondet (12.6%). 1,506 employees hold shares in the company and their
total ownership share is 15.4%.

Largest shareholders as at 31 December 2000

Name Ownership share %
Folketrygdfondet 12.6
Storebrand Livsforsikring 12.6
Avansefondene 7.0
K-Holding 4.9
OBOS Forretningsbygg 4.0
K-fondene 4.0
KLP Forsikring 3.6
Vital Forsikring 2.9
Tine Pensjonskasse 1.8
Firstnordic Fondene                1.6
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Share capital
In March 2000, the Veidekke share was subdivided
into two new shares, and the voting limitations in
the company’s articles of association were remo-
ved, making it one share one vote. In order to
strengthen the company’s financial position for
future growth in Norway and Scandinavia, Veidekke
conducted a rights issue in May. For every sixth
share held a new share was issued to existing 
shareholders, increasing the shareholders’ equity 
by NOK 191.2 million.

At 31 December 2000, Veidekke’s share capital was
NOK 66.5 million divided into 26,589,873 shares of
NOK 2.50 each. Changes in the company’s share
capital since it was first listed on the Oslo Stock
Exchange are shown in the table below.

Authorisation to issue shares and purchase 
own shares 
The Annual General Meeting has authorised the
Board of Directors to issue up to 4.4 million shares.
This authorisation is valid until 1 July 2001. Insofar
as this is possible, Veidekke seeks to ensure that
any resolutions concerning changes in share capital
are passed by the Annual General Meeting. Since
1986, authorisation has been granted for two years
at a time. This authorisation has primarily been
used in connection with issues of shares to em-
ployees and in connection with minor mergers.

The Board of Directors is also authorised to repur-
chase the company’s own shares for a total nominal
value of up to a NOK 6.5 million, or just under 10%
of the share capital. This authorisation is valid until
31 August 2001. The Board of Directors considers
the repurchase of shares in the company as a pos-
sible solution if the company’s financial situation is
strong and there are no interesting investment opti-
ons in the Group’s business areas.

Inside information
Veidekke has incorporated current legislation regar-
ding the handling of confidential information and
the rules for reporting share transactions in its 
routines. Veidekke follows a stricter practice than is
required by law in its internal trading rules. In addi-
tion to the wider statutory duty to investigate, the
company observes the duty to clear primary insi-
ders, in order to ensure more thorough compliance
with the duty to investigate. This is in keeping with
the recommendations of the Oslo Stock Exchange.
Veidekke has also drawn up internal rules which
have been made known to all employees in key
positions and to senior shop stewards. According 
to these rules, certain persons cannot trade in the
company’s shares at given times. They may not, 
for example, trade in shares one and two months
before the issue of the quarterly and annual reports
respectively.

Adjustment of the opening value of shares (RISK)
Each year an adjustment is made in the opening
value of shares, based on the change in Veidekke’s
retained, taxed capital divided by the number of
outstanding Veidekke shares. It is only Norwegian
shareholders who have to adjust their cost price by
this amount. The adjustment amounts for the last
six years are shown in the table overleaf. The
amount passes to Norwegian shareholders on 
1 January of the following year.

Amount Number of shares Share capital

paid in  after increase after increase  Adjustment

Form of issue NOK mill. (1,000) NOK mill. factor

1986  Dispersion issue price 11.71 25.3 3,053 30.5
1986  Issue employees, price 10.54 3.1 3,113 31.1
1988  Bonus issue 5:1 3,736 37.4 0.833
1989  Merger Hesselberg Vei 4,693 46.9
1989  Dividend shares 0.5 4,746 47.5 0.998
1990  Merger Folke A. Axelson A/S 4,802 48.0
1990  Dividend shares 0.6 4,861 48.6 0.999
1991  Merger Stoltz Røthing Haugesund A/S 4,912 49.1
1991  Merger Aker Entreprenør A/S 5,623 56.2
1995  Issue employees, price 26.24 8.0 5,698 57.0
1998  Share split 1:2 11,396 57.0
2000  Share split 1:2 22,791 57.0
2000  Rights issue 6:1 191.2 26,590 66.5 0.981
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Investor relations
Veidekke considers it important to keep the market regularly informed about the company’s progress.
Quarterly reports will be issued on the dates given on the inside front cover of this report.

When annual and interim reports are published, Veidekke normally holds presentations for sharehol-
ders, brokers, analysts and the press, both in Norway and abroad. The company also maintains regular
contact with investors and analysts. Most stockbroking houses at the Oslo Stock Exchange carry out
analyses of Veidekke shares. 

The company publishes information in Norwegian and English.

The Internet
Veidekke’s quarterly reports, analysts’ reports and other important press releases are accessible on the
Internet at www.veidekke.no on the same date as they are published through traditional channels.

VEIDEKKE SHARE 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Market price at 31 December (NOK) 57.00 74.50 45.00 64.50 50.25 31.57
- high 74.00 77.50 74.25 73.00 51.25 36.50
- low 53.00 49.50 40.00 49.00 33.88 28.75
Earnings per share (NOK) 4.79 8.41 8.10 7.91 3.39 2.24
Price/Earnings (P/E) 11.9 8.7 5.4 8.0 14.5 13.8
Cash flow per share (NOK) 20.18 19.15 16.78 15.22 10.19 7.53
Market price/cash flow 2.8 3.8 2.6 4.2 5.0 4.1
Dividend per share (NOK) 2.00 2.75 2.50 2.38 1.38 0.75
Payout ratio (%) 41.8 32.1 30.3 29.5 39.8 32.9
Earnings yield (%) 3.5 3.7 5.6 3.7 2.7 2.4
Outstanding shares (average ’000) 25,199 22,792 22,792 22,792 22,478 22,220
Market value at 31 December (NOK mill.) 1,516 1,698 1,026 1,470 1,145 719
No. of shareholders at 31 December 3,452 3,353 2,960 2,592 2,430 2,245
Amount for adjustment of opening value
of shares 0.401) 8.04 1.99 0.86 -1.38 1.65

1) Estimate. The final amount is determined by the tax authorities. Norwegian shareholders are notified   
by the Norwegian Central Securities Depository.
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Addresses

HEAD OFFICE
P.O. Box 505 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 01
E-mail: firmapost@veidekke.no
Internet: http://www.veidekke.no/

PROPERTY DIVISION SCANDINAVIA
P.O. Box 507 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 11 

Veidekke Bolig AS
P.O. Box 507 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 14

Veidekke Bostad & Fastighet AB
Box 210 30, S-100 31 Stockholm, Sweden
Office address: Hälsingegatan 40, 6 tr.
Telephone: +46 8 728 56 40
Telefax: +46 8 728 56 41

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION/
INTERNATIONAL DIVISION
P.O. Box 504 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 26

Section East
P.O. Box 65, N-1431 Ås
Office address: Langbakken 16
Telephone: +47 64 97 47 00
Telefax +47 64 97 47 35

Dykkerteknikk 
P.O. Box 68, N-1721 Greåker
Office address: Greåkerveien 27
Telephone: +47 69 10 27 00
Telefax +47 69 10 27 01

Kynningsrud Fundamentering AS
Vallehellene 3, N-1662 Rolvsøy
Telephone: +47 69 30 97 00
Telefax +47 69 30 97 01

Trafikk & Anlegg AS
Røraskogen 16, N-3739 Skien
Telephone: +47 35 91 59 20
Telefax +47 35 91 59 30

Noremco Construction AS
P.O. Box 519 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 60
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 61

Noremco Construction AS
P.O. Box 23287, Oyster Bay
Dar es Salaam, Tanzania
Telephone: +255 51 600540
Telefax +255 51 602813

DIVISION CONSTRUCTION IN SWEDEN

Veidekke Stockholm AB
Box 210 30, S-100 31 Stockholm,
Office address: Hälsingegatan 40, 6 tr
Telephone: +46 8 728 56 40
Telefax: +46 8 728 56 41

VECON Veidekke Construction AB
Box 6273, S-400 60 Göteborg
Office address: Norra Gubberogatan 32
Telephone: +46 31 707 1950
Telefax: +46 31 846 861

DIVISION REGIONAL CONSTRUCTION 
IN NORWAY

Norske Stålbygg AS
P.O. Box 1083, N-3204 Sandefjord
Office address: Gneisveien 8
Telephone: +47 33 47 73 77
Telefax: +47 33 47 93 06

UNI Bygg A.S
P.O. Box 513, N-9485 Harstad
Office address: Klubbholmen 11
Telephone: +47 77 00 23 00
Telefax: +47 77 00 23 01

Region Oslo
P.O. Box 506 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 41

Bøhler Vedlikehold AS
P.O. Box 4203 Torshov, N-0401 Oslo
Office address: Sandakerveien 110
Telephone: +47 23 05 90 00
Telefax: +47 23 05 90 50

Region East
District Østfold og S. Akershus
P.O. Box 55, N-1431 Ås
Office address: Langbakken 16
Telephone: +47 64 97 47 00
Telefax: +47 64 97 47 01

Department South
P.O. Box 68, N-1720 Greåker
Office address: Greåkerveien 27
Telephone: +47 69 10 27 00
Telefax: +47 69 10 27 01

District Indre Østland
P.O. Box 203, N-2391 Moelv
Office address: Marisagveien 8
Telephone: +47 62 33 17 00
Telefax: +47 62 36 90 30

District Romerike
Seby AS
Vestvollveien 6, N-2019 Skedsmokorset
Telephone: +47 63 87 82 80
Telefax: +47 63 87 60 17

Region Buskerud, Vestfold, Telemark
District Buskerud 
Gråterudveien 45, N-3036 Drammen
Telephone: +47 32 26 00 00
Telefax: +47 32 26 00 30

Department Hallingdal/Valdres
Glitre, N-3550 Gol
Telephone: +47 32 07 49 44
Telefax: +47 32 07 56 15

Department Ringerike
Kongensgate 13, N-3510 Hønefoss
Telephone: +47 32 12 50 15
Telefax: +47 32 12 50 14

A/S Valdresbygg
N-2920 Leira i Valdres
Telephone: +47 61 36 22 90
Telefax: +47 61 36 25 99

District Vestfold
P.O. Box 300, N-3101 Tønsberg
Office address: St. Olavs gate 1
Telephone: +47 33 30 79 79
Telefax: +47 33 30 79 78

District Telemark
P.O. Box 166, N-3901 Porsgrunn
Office address: Dokkveien 10
Telephone: +47 35 93 11 11
Telefax: +47 35 93 11 12

Region South
Br. Reme A/S
Serviceboks 423, N-4604 Kristiansand
Office address: Gravane 20
Telephone: +47 38 12 58 00
Telefax: +47 38 12 58 01

Block Berge Bygg A/S
Øksnevad, N-4353 Klepp Stasjon
Telephone: +47 51 78 99 00
Telefax: +47 51 78 99 01

Region North/West
District Bergen
P.O. Box 6005 Postterminalen, N-5892
Bergen
Office address: Møllendalsbakken 9
Telephone: +47 55 38 70 00
Telefax: +47 55 38 70 01

District Haugesund
Smedasundet 50, N-5528 Haugesund
Telephone: +47 52 80 60 00
Telefax: +47 52 80 60 01

District Sogn og Fjordane
P.O. Box 63, N-6851 Sogndal
Office address: Kaupanger
Industriområde
Telephone: +47 57 67 90 10
Telefax: +47 57 67 90 11

Department Sandane
P.O. Box 185, N-6821 Sandane
Telephone: +47 57 86 62 55
Telefax: +47 57 86 59 80

District Trondheim
P.O. Box 6100 Sluppen, N-7435
Trondheim
Office address: Sluppenvegen 11
Telephone: +47 73 82 35 00
Telefax: +47 73 82 35 90

District Tromsø
P.O. Box 2502, N-9266 Tromsø
Office address: Søren Zakariassens gate 
Telephone: +47 77 69 80 50
Telefax: +47 77 69 80 51

DIVISION CONSTRUCTION IN DENMARK
H. Hoffmann & Sønner A/S

Management and Region East
Fabriksparken 66, DK-2600 Glostrup,
Denmark
Telephone: + 45 43 29 90 00
Telefax: + 45 43 43 31 81

Region South
Nørre allé 13, DK-7000 Fredericia,
Denmark
Telephone: + 45 76 20 37 77
Telefax: + 45 76 20 37 76

Region North
Edwin Rahrs Vej 88
DK-8220 Brabrand, Denmark
Telephone: + 45 87 47 47 47
Telefax: + 45 87 47 47 87
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Turnover Turnover

Norway 68%

Sweden 5%

Denmark
23%

We are in no doubt at Veidekke what our best guarantee of progress is. It is the closest 

possible interaction with our customers. This is reflected in our business philosophy: 

To create value by designing, building and managing structures in partnership with 

customers who inspire growth and development. The year under review proved over and

over again that this is the key to our success. This philosophy has also proved to be the

best guide to continuous improvement. We wish to report more than the bare facts in this

Annual Report. We wish to demonstrate that our business philosophy is very much alive.

The requirement of precision underpins everything we promise our customers. We deliver the agreed
quality at the agreed time and at the agreed price. On this foundation rest three promises which shall be
visible to customers and other partners: To build in partnership, to think innovatively and to create value.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2001

Publication dates for interim reports
1st quarter: 4  May 
2nd quarter: 22  August
3rd quarter: 1 November

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 3 May 
The shares will be quoted ex dividend on 4 May
Distribution of dividends to shareholders on 23 May

Investor Relations, telephone + 47 21 05 77 22
Internet: www.veidekke.no
The Annual Report is accessible at
www.veidekke.no/investorinfo
Information about Veidekke may also be obtained at
www.huginonline.com/Norway/VEI

Five-year Review 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Profit
Turnover * 8,005 6,487 5,645 4,961 4,129
Operating profit * 263.9 328.3 287.8 248.6 113.6
Profit before taxation * 185.0 295.3 282.3 270.4 123.0
Gross profit margin (%) 2.3 4.6 5.0 5.5 3.0
Order Book, Construction * 5,833 3,210 2,682 2,710 2,261

Financial figures
Cash flow from operating activities * 299.1 327.1 283.4 507.6 107.5
Gross investments * 1,635 526 590 321 212
Equity ratio (%) 20.5 29.4 29.4 32.0 30.9

Profitability
Return on working capital (%) 10.2 24.5 26.8 29.4 15.7
Return on equity (%) 10.8 20.4 23.1 26.5 13.7

Shares and shareholders
Earnings per share (NOK) 4.79 8.41 8.10 7.91 3.39
Dividend per share (NOK) 2.00 2.75 2.50 2.38 1.38
Market price 31 December (NOK) 57.00 74.50 45.00 64.50 50.25
Market value at 31 December * 1,516 1,698 1,026 1,470 1,145

Employees
Average number of employees in the
Nordic countries 5,021 4,175 4,047 3,176 3,111
Absence rate (%) 6.1 5.2 4.9 4.6 4.3
Absence rate hourly-paid employees (%) 7.9 6.7 6.1 6.0 5.4
Lost-time injuries per million working 
hours 11.8 9.4 11.9 12.5 16.3

* In NOK million
Key figures and definitions see page 43
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INDUSTRY DIVISION 

Divisional Management
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Kolo Veidekke a.s (Asphalting)
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4, Skøyen
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 50
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Region East
P.O. Box 124, N-2051 Jessheim
Office address: Industriveien 14
Telephone: +47 63 94 78 50
Telefax +47 63 94 78 51

District South
N-1827 Hobøl
Telephone: +47 69 92 16 22
Telefax: +47 69 92 19 19

District Central Norway
P.O. Box 113, N-1471 Skårer
Office address: Solheimsveien 91 F
Telephone: +47 67 91 11 10
Telefax: +47 67 91 11 11

District North
N-2834 Hunndalen
Telephone: +47 61 17 33 65
Telefax: +47 61 17 72 70

Kongsvinger Asfalt
P.O. Box 1234, N-2201 Kongsvinger
Office address: Mårveien 14
Telephone: +47 62 82 88 50
Telefax: +47 62 82 88 60

Region North West
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

District Finnmark
Raipasveien, N-9517 Alta
Telephone: +47 78 44 97 00
Telefax: +47 78 44 97 01

District Nordland/Troms
P.O. Box 243, N-8201 Fauske
Telephone: +47 75 64 10 50
Telefax: +47 75 64 10 51

District Trøndelag
P.O. Box 6100 Sluppen, N-7435 Trondheim
Office address: Sluppenvegen 11
Telephone: +47 73 82 35 00
Telefax: +47 73 82 35 95

District Møre
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

District Rogaland/Sogn og Fjordane
P.O. Box 8042 Spjelkavik, N-6022 Ålesund
Office address: Bingsa Industriområde
Telephone: +47 70 17 54 00
Telefax: +47 70 17 54 10

Gravel and Crushed Stone
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 50
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 51

Veidekke Gjenvinning AS (Recycling)
P.O. Box 508 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo
Office address: Skabos vei 4
Telephone: +47 21 05 50 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 50 21

Arog AS
P.O. Box 393, N-1372 Asker
Office address: Yggeseth 
Telephone: +47 66 78 74 41
Telefax: +47 66 90 07 85

Dokken AS
P.O. Box 237, N-3470 Slemmestad
Office address: Almdalsveien 6
Telephone: +47 66 79 45 00
Telefax: +47 66 79 50 26

Spesialrenovasjon AS
P.O. Box 273 Økern, N-0511 Oslo
Office address: Haraldrudveien 20
Telephone: +47 23 26 78 50
Telefax: +47 22 63 08 69

Wilhelmsen & Sønner A/S
P.O. Box 273 Økern, N-0511 Oslo
Office address: Haraldrudveien 20
Telephone: +47 23 26 78 50
Telefax: +47 22 63 08 69

BAUTAS (Plant Hire)
P.O. Box 190, N-1313 Vøyenenga
Office address: Ringeriksveien 201 C
Telephone: +47 21 05 55 00
Telefax: +47 21 05 55 01

Weather Protection

Lainapeite Oy
Koskelontie 17 b, FIN-02920 Espoo, Finland 
Telephone: +358 10 809 900
Telefax: +358 9 8491 5520

Jonsereds Miljøsystem AB
William Gibsons väg 1, S-43389 Jonsered,
Sweden
Telephone: +46 31 94 99 00
Telefax: +46 31 94 99 10

IPS Dansk Presenning A/S
Islevdalvej 150, DK-2610 Rødovre, Denmark
Telephone: +45 44 94 42 00
Telefax: +45 44 84 77 15



We create value…

Annual Report 2000 

Veidekke ASA
P.O. Box 505 Skøyen, N-0214 Oslo

Telephone +47 21 05 50 00 Fax +47 21 05 50 01
E-mail: firmapost@veidekke.no

Internet: www.veidekke.no
The Annual Report is also accessible at: www.veidekke.no/investorinfo
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